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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwiill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 176 to 332, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

FEETEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMRLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$19,374,605,000, accounting
for approximately 87% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2022 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$464,274,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEESPEERAREFETENSTR

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
HEETEEGR

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSIR(E)

o Challenging the reasonableness and
appropriateness of valuation models applied
based on available market information and
our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are consistent
with those used in prior year; and

° Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key inputs used in the
valuations, on a sample basis, based on
evidence of comparable market
transactions, existing tenancy profiles and
other publicly available information of the
property industry.

s REMBMHEMEEMEMEITENR
B KEBAERAAERLENSEE NEE
M- URBBTARECEBEFEMAE
LEES RIS

o MEALHMSERSMER  REROK
FHERMEMAMAGHOER -
w77 2 FEAE A AL E AR P 6 RO B 3R
mtaE MG BN -



Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
FHREFEEGE

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

AHEREMEZTREEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$1,063,112,000 as at 31 December 2022. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to prevailing market data on most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation reports
available from independent qualified professional valuers, which
takes into account the prevailing real estate market conditions.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion of
the PFS and costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS
was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHPREFABENSTENSX(E)

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
the NRV of the PFS included:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management or independent qualified
professional valuers, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the
market prices achieved in the same projects
or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the PFS
estimated by the management, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the Group’s
development budget and the actual
development cost of similar properties
recently completed by the Group and by
checking the actual cost incurred to date to
construction contracts and other relevant
documents.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2023

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4#k

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
T8 3 B

BB E S ESMBRRREN
=—4:3¢ )

FREMEFEIRSN - BAREBESRETHEIMET
BE - BHEZHE EAFARRS  BERME
2t AP R Bl P A R O () B KRR B -

BfERERBRREN HARMENEHRA
BUMMEBEERERER YRMBMEEAR
EAEMERA RS ERMBLENMERR
MEMER AREEBBOEBERLT  REREE
MmERENR 1T B S AR RA R BT #FE 1 -

HREREBBNFERET  RMABEWLERY
AHREGEEMBHRRNBARA/EEZ BB
PREESEEATEH - R EXBENRE T HME
LT RIFEBERTAFARBREELS
B FEBBFEROERT - IRAEFAHER
PEETEBREFREKNBERRBEESE
MARMeE  HPRETNEERETEBRZE
I8 o

BERBIUZBENREZBITHBABARIMN

o

9t EE

EE-FARMRA AT
S E -4
i

—E-_=%=HA=-+=H



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED w1k 4 B4 B 4w

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o 48 B Bt 2 OO 36

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —Z— —F+—H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—_T-= —E-—4F
Restated
K E T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aF BETR BT T
Revenue W &=
Revenue from goods and Bk R E
services 102,242 149,976
Rental income BB A 376,134 418,915
Total revenue FERg 6 478,376 568,891
Cost of sales FER-I DN (82,588) (109,966)
Gross profit EF 395,788 458,925
Other income, gains and losses HEml A~ Wz & EE 7 52,776 25,034
Selling expenses HEEH (3,629) (7,017)
Administrative expenses THERA (118,712) (123,426)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEMBARZ(BER),/
subsidiaries I = 38 (788) 1,864
Net fair value loss on investment HEMELNTFE
properties B8 5 & 17 (464,274) (1,077,458)
Reversal of impairment loss on loan & Y & % 5 & &5 18
receivables #[El 20 247 400
Finance costs A& KA 9 (43,079) (24,614)
Loss before income tax expense  BRATEFASL BIE 1B 10 (181,671) (746,092)
Income tax expense FriS i =2 13 (80,720) (62,008)

Loss for the year FEREHE (262,391) (808,100)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A fr TR AR B LAt 2 B 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —fF + = A=+ —HIL FZ

2022 2021
—_T-= —E-—4F
Restated
K E 5|
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o it BETR BT T
Other comprehensive Hib 2w (BZ) WA >
(expense)/income, net of tax N BIEE 14
Item that will not be reclassifiedto X TN EB# T2 EFH 548
profit or loss: Bz
Change in fair value of financial BRATVEGFAREMEE
assets at fair value through WA (R A FERTA
other comprehensive income Hmz2mii ALz i
(“FVTOCI") BEEsAFEE (171) 559
Itemn that may be reclassified LT IE A £ AJfEE 3T 55
subsequently to profit or loss: 2EEIE 7
Exchange (loss)/gain on MEBINER 2
translation of foreign bE 5 (E518) /W &=
operations (27,912) 18,922
Other comprehensive (expense) ~ FEAREME2E (%),
income for the vear, net of tax WA BRI IR (28,083) 19,481
Total comprehensive expense ERNEZHEHX
for the year (290,474) (788,619)
(Loss)/profit for the year eI SE R (B518) itk
attributable to: -
Owners of the Company VN/NEIET RN (268,201) (807,930)
Non-controlling interests IE 1o AR A 2 5,810 (170)

(262,391) (808,100)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SR AR AR R At 2 i A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Restated
K E T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &+ BETR BT T
Total comprehensive EEEREL2E (FAX),
(expense)/income for the WA
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIET RN (294,353) (788,368)
Non-controlling interests eV M A = 3,879 (@51)
(290,474) (788,619)
Loss per share for loss EATHABAAELER
attributable to owners of the BlEZEBKREBE
Company for the year 16
Basic BN HK$ 7% %5 (0.95) 7T HK$ % & (2.85) 7T
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FINANCIAL POSITION

2022 2021
—=E-= —E——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 T IT BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets REEE
Investment properties "EYE 17 19,374,605 19,808,515
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB NEE 18 122,528 135,216
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFESAHMEEUY A
LB EE 21 39,656 28,605
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEMZE BN &
properties 9,251 16,491
Loan receivables JEU B R 20 5,906 16,552
Total non-current assets BIEREBEE 19,551,946 20,005,379
Current assets REBEE
Properties for sale HEWME 19 1,063,112 888,704
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A FE U SRR 20 174,070 151,757
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A FE 5 A 8 %
profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (AT EFAEEDZ
B E 21 38,884 2,815
Restricted bank deposits Z R HER1T1F 3K 22 - 16,110
Short-term bank deposits S EaRER 22 272,400 251,181
Cash and cash equivalents REMBEEEY 22 1,122,544 885,358
2,671,010 2,195,925
Assets classified as held for sale NEEFEZEE 37 — 75,300
Total current assets BRENEE 2,671,010 2,071,225
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N H A e IR 23 855,326 545,888
Contract liabilities BHBEE 24 120,568 47,186
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 20,912 13,729
Borrowings BE 26 87,728 1,396,158
Provision for income tax Fr 5’ 121,631 125,595
Total current liabilities LU EDR=N 1,206,165 2,128,556
Net current assets FRBEE 1,464,845 142,669
Total assets less current WEERREER
liabilities 21,016,791 20,148,048
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B W BSIR L %
As at 31 December 2022 R —E -~ —#E+ - H=+—H
2022 2021
—g—-C —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
N3 BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Borrowings BE 26 1,686,799 475,343
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25 29,703 15,699
Deferred tax liabilities BRERBBAEE 27 124,655 115,306
Total non-current liabilities WIERBEE 1,841,157 606,348
Net assets FEE 19,175,634 19,541,700
EQUITY HEx
Equity attributable to owners EATIHEERA
of the Company FE{L#E
Share capital [E&N 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves (k] 29 19,145,878 19,496,893
19,174,209 19,525,224
Non-controlling interests JEE R HERS 35 1,425 16,476
Total equity HEmEE 19,175,634 19,541,700

The consolidated financial statements on pages 176 to 332 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2028 and are signed on behalf by:

FI76ESNREAZEAEMBBERN T __F_A_T-HREFTSRENNE YHUTEERARESE:

Chan Hing Tat Chan Wai Ling
PREEE REZF
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HaBlenak

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%

—E- - A= —HIFFE

2022 2021
—Eg-C —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it BT BT T
Operating activities EEER
Loss before income tax expense BT HAZAIES (181,671) (746,092)
Adjustments for: TS E B 5 2
Interest income from financial assets at X A F{ETA B % 2 0115
FVTPL BEZHBWA (2,456) (6,586)
Interest income from loan receivables EREHF S HA (533) (1,058)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWYE BMERLEBEZERE
equipment — 65
Revaluation deficit on property, plantand 4% . FE R R E 2 EHEE
equipment 120 520
Other interest income H At RS WA (25,162) (7,401)
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMEXZH 40,921 23,756
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBEMBEXZ N 2,158 858
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 7,206 8,762
Depreciation of other property, Hitvz  WMEMEETE
plant and equipment 5,842 10,574
Reversal of impairment loss on loan EWEFREBERELD
receivables (247) (400)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B o RUGR B RERE
receivables, net B EF 5 (24) (182)
Net fair value loss on investment REMELNTFEBBEE
properties 17 464,274 1,077,458
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries and HEK B AR RIREME 2
investment properties Wi,/ (EE) 38 432 (1,864)
Operating profit before working BEBSHER LB RN
capital changes 310,860 358,410
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5Kk H A EKKIECEM),
receivables B (23,627) 27160
(Increase)/decrease in properties for sale & W E L), WD (188,821) 60,490
Decrease in restricted bank deposits TR &R ITEFOR D 16,110 47,972
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 N HoAth JE A FRIE R A (9,339) (67,094)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEEM 73,382 19,504
Net cash generated from operations XBHEREFE 178,565 446,442
Income tax paid B S H (75,171) (63,124)
Net cash generated from operating WERBHFHEFHE
activities 103,394 393,318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BABERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8 & —F — —F+ - H=+—HIL FZ

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iiaz3 BETT BETT
Investing activities BEEE
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI BEEATEFAAHMEZE
WAZBBEE (11,182) (28,046)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL ~ EEE R QA F(EFARBH Z
B EE (563,580) (383,968)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets H &% A FEF AR R 2

at FVTPL Mg EEMBHIE 526,972 445,099
Placement of short-term bank deposits 77 K58 B4R 1777 7k (2,220,504) (251,181)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits 32 EX A2 #R iR 1775 3¢ 2,199,285 425,668
Repayment from loan receivables FE WEFER 12,157 1,843
Additions to property, plant and EADE - BERZBE

equipment (400) (3,397)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE  BENMRE

plant and equipment Fr 1S 5k 18 - 28
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEMSHIEA

properties 6,827 —
Deposits refund/(paid) for acquisitons of ~ U B % 7 iRiE /(BT 4

properties 7,240 (7,240)
Payment to acquire and construction of W EE KX BRI EWE 2

investment properties (43,517) (417,887)
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEMBARZEERA

subsidiaries R 38 123,168 160,823
Interest received from financial assets at A FEFAE R 20 7%

FVTPL BEZBWAME 2,456 6,586
Interest received from loan receivables FEW B E W F ‘J 533 1,058
Other interest received H Ao 2 W F) 2 25,162 7,401
Deposits received on disposal of HEWBAR ZEWIZES

subsidiaries 319,382 —
Deposit received on disposal of an HEREMEZEWZS

investment property - 1,500
Net cash generated from/{used in) RETBFTIR (BT Bt FEE

investing activities 383,999 41,713)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F — —

BABSREE

FtroA=1—HIEFE

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Financing activities Bl & & B
Repayments of bank loans BEPBITER (2,222,697) (680,497)
Bank loans raised EERITER 2,125,723 700,000
Interest paid on borrowings ENEERE (40,921) (23,756)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEEEFE (2,158) (858)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (21,394) (10,456)
Final and special dividends paid BT ARER R R B (56,662) (56, 662)
Dividend paid to minority interest EfVEEZKE (18,930)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZE T % FE (237,039) (72,229)
Increase in cash and cash ReRREEEYEN
equivalents 250,354 279,376
Cash and cash equivalents as at R—B—HBZzH&R
1 January HEeZEY 885,358 601,806
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgaua3sE
changes, net (13,168) 4,176
Cash and cash equivalents as at R+ZA=+—HBZH&R
31 December HeZ%EEY 1,122,544 885,358
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SR B SR B %

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATHEAANEGER

Capital

Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
EAXEE

.3 B # itk (8 & ¥
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EETRT EETR EETRT

As at 1 January 2022 HR-—®-——-—f£—HA—8 28,331 690,811 295
Loss for the year EREBE — - _
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hih2@EBEX) WA
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI  #Z A FEFAEMEZERA ZHIEEE

ZAFEEE = = -
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations ~ #: &/§ 5N 7 2 [E 3 &5 18 - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FREXTER) WA

for the year - - -

Proposed final dividends for 2022 (note 15(a)) BE_T-_ RGBS

(BT & 15(a)) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest BRI ERERR A - - -
Final dividends paid for 2021 (note 15(b)) ENZZ=—FRHARKRE

(P 5£15(b)) = - —
As at 31 December 2022 R-¥-Z-f#+-A=+-—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —fF + = A=+ —HIL FZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATBEAANEGELR

Investment Proposed Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special LLE] controlling Total

reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
RAE Ltk
{1 RB A BE 52 i 455 5 15% iz B “@st FEIERER s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT

559 18,745,477 1,241 1,848 56,662 19,525,224 16,476 19,541,700
= (268,201) = = = (268,201) 5,810 (262,391)

(71) = = = = (71) = (71)
— = (25,981) = = (25,981) (1,931) (27,912)

(71) (268,201) (25,981) = = (294,353) 3,879 (290,474)
- (56,662) - - 56,662 - - -
= = = = = = (18,930) (18,930)
= = = = (56,662) (56,662) = (56,662)

388 18,420,614 (24,740) 1,848 56,662 19,174,209 1,425 19,175,634
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SO RSB R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
RARHEAR N EIEE R
Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
BARER
B& A B& 1% 5 (B 1
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
PR T R T BT T
As at 1 January 2021 W-—T¥-—%—HA—8 28,331 690,811 295
Loss for the year EREE — — _
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hipz2Emk A (FAX)
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI  #Z A FEFAEMEZERA ZHIEEE
ZRAFEES — - -
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations  # &/8 5N % 7% 2 [E i U 25 — = -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FhEZERAN(FAX)
for the year — — —
Proposed final dividends for 2021 (note 15(a)) BE_TFRERES
(BT & 15(a)) - - -
Final dividends paid for 2020 (note 15(b)) ENZZETFRERS
(Bt 5E15(0)) — _ _
As at 31 December 2021 w-_g-—f$+=-A=+—8H 28,331 690,311 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

RATHEBEANEGER
Investment Proposed Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
REEM BEARY
& R & A T 5 5 Bl 8 [\ it IR E R e AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
— 19,610,069 (17,762) 1,848 56,662 20,370,254 16,727 20,386,981
— (807,930) — — — (807,930) (170) (808,100)
559 — — — — 559 — 559
— — 19,003 — — 19,003 (81) 18,922
559 (807,930) 19,003 — — (788,368) (251) (788,619)
— (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)

559 18,745,477 1,241 1,848 56,662 19,625,224 16,476 19,541,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o W 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 —ZF— —tF+—HA=+—HIFF/Z

General Information

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, executive
director of the Company, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

—iR&EF
cHEEEERAR(ARE D ARBERE
A LEERE CBRAR  AQR M
% % B2 b 1k /& Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° 22 &
BROEEBHERZHERAR (BT
£

ARRETEXEBR/RERR  HWEBAR
ZEBEBHNEAMBRRMEIS - K
REALEMBARTAKRENDEZEEY
XERR MEHEREHEFEERS

ARTEFE(EENRAADT L HILE
B BB SR (HERE]) TART
WITHEM S HRA LR EF K E (B
RANTEERB S ME)ARIEEL T
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2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

241

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual
framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment —
Proceeds Before
Intended Use

Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts and the related

2020 and February 2022 Amendments'
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments to
HK Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024

FEREEITEEMBREEL
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Bl Eo85 2 B3] HERFA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2. FEREETEEMBRE A

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (EEMBREELDE)
(Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but 2.2 EiEMhHERRERB T REE

not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKAS mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.
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2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(Continued)
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”
The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities are
assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the
investment properties, right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual
reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2023. The
application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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3. Basis of Preparation

3.1

3.2

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 176 to
332 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, investment properties and
buildings which are measured at fair values or revalued
amounts at the end of each reporting period as set out in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Basis of Preparation (Continued)
3.2 Basis of Measurement (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”
(“HKFRS 13”) is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technigue that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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3. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of Measurement (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised in note 4.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. FEETHBEREBE
Policies
4.1 Basis of Consolidation 41 HZEEE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the RAEMBRERBEARARAIRBARAT
financial statements of the Company and entities MEWBAREG 2 B 2 BB ®
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. = o
Control is achieved when the Company: il 2R3 ) EE A DA T i 4 - BDERTS 452 )
1
. has power over the investee; . BREEHEEER:
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from . HESBEERER 2 FEER
its involvement with the investee; and ZEEERESEN &
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. . BEE R WIRE T RN

&
BHMSER -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an MESERBERBT LY =ZIEESIT
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there ZHPE-HIAZELREY - A5H
are changes to one or more of the three elements of AIEMATHERTHRRETES
control listed above. PRI o

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group EAREBE RSB AR 2 TS
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the WEBARBMRGEE AR B4XE
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, KEHWB AR =GR - [MBA
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or AIAITNBEZAEAK - BEBmME A
disposed of during the year are included in the Frus BE sk BT b & B A R 2 W A K 59
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Yo hEASERSESEERRS
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains REBTHIZEFMMBARERLILEFA
control until the date when the Group ceases to control FEEmLHEMEEKAR -

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive BakEEM2EAKRABENEBR
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and RAEHEBARIEZERER - fTBA
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive Bz BEERATNEBRARRHE
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the ARGEEIR R - B LR g B IE
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this TR IR BAERIINE -
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial NERGHNBARZ T EHREIED
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting FE - UFEESHBREFEASE Y

policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. BETBUR ©
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.1 Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing

subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as

specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

4.2 Joint Arrangements
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Joint Arrangements (Continued)

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in
the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
to a third party.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

4.

FESFHBORBIER)

4.2

4.3

SERHGE
REEEFZ#D (&)
AEERBERANERNEE - BF
W kX 2 BB BHREER - K
HERBEXH Bz EE &
B WEm kA AR -

EREEREQERTRIMEEE
BAAZEENT(WHEHEXERME
E) ARBERERBAEEK LA
&5 RIRZFELEZBERR
REEXRBHRME T ES 2D 7
AREEMBERERAMER -

EEEERHEQLEEBRIMERE
BRAEZENT(WBEERE) &%
EreERENEZAE BEEZS
BEBETE=1RIL-

HEIERHEE

HWIERBEE (MHEMRR) 2 REE
HERBBHEXFMIEFEERM
Wm e RN BEAETE - EEEE(K
HEARNEHRBRTAIATZANHE
(EXBIREZEERBEERNZ
HEBAERERZHEF) XL AK
BRI ER - 7 @A QM B I 5
- EREBARIHEE  BIED
BZRES—FR  ZHEEERE

EREER NN R KRELHB AT
EhRZHEFBRN  ZMBARZ
FREEERBEENG LR ERE D
BABE MIRAKEEEEHE
BARBENIAREMNE AR 2 R g

Ng
S o
I



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4154 B4 R 2 v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and investment
properties which continue to be measured in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Investment Properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes.

Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing and capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

4.

FESFHBORBIER)

4.5 Y% BERREER)

EEYE - BELRRBEENTMNE
BAEEREMEE KR AR R
BEEMLEETR  HELQFR—&
EEAENERTHER 2 EMRMER
SBIERSN - FEUERT - BT ER
ABBER - HALRIZ 2 BES
R-EEME BEMRBEEZE
HFERLERIBERARER  HEN
HBHZEESLMAEELZABE
EEMARHBZHBE (WA RR - £&
HESHBCEREER @ BHER
BREREREEAN -

Hitp¥ % ~ BB R EERBVIEKA
ME R REHTE MEF RFHREE R
(AR &R A WA KT -

ME - BEERRBIRABREERE
EBREBEEBERBHERA - KAE
EEEEEDENEREEERTE
w7 ARG EM L ENLE MG
MEREENEFAKRAS  AEEE
BEREEMS) RAKEGHABET
NEREEERA - ZFEELRR
HivMEEERRNEE  RZEFE
E AR AERE B g B R A R IR T
E - HERAFABE 2 FREESKR
BERERRBLEE  WMRER
BRZIER Z RKELBENRRATEER
AREE R ZER 2 RABER] ST
8o BERMAAR(MEERRE)E
HEAZVBHHEARBRTER
RFEX -



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 45 P¥  BERREE)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
valuation of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6 Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

under that standard.

4.7 Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the

contract are subsequently changed.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from

individual leases within the portfolio.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 47 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

4.

FESFHBORBIER)

47 HE(E)

FEEEBRBEAE)
EHEEE (&)

o AREFRBEBHREBEE -
EEMEBEEEMNR 2R EE
HHEEEEZHEERKRE
T ESK 2 AR T E & 2 K
ZNEE

EREEERKAREE ARG
ENREREETE I HERED
EREHFEFLHE -

REE A EHETE A N B REEUS
HRAHEEERGRZERREE
TymfAte B AR E R B4 EEHR
e - B EREEESREMGS
ARBARENMERCREE LB
RRORRTIRITE »

AEBKEREEEINATDE K
FR&mE] B2 EREEE E (H
wAB)zF—HEA -

REMZKE
ENRER SRS HRBEEBIE
HEERNERAR - TR AFE
FHE - RARERREL 2 A FEH
B BRENIEENK XA AER
REEMA -

HEERE

AEBENEERKAY  RZB®HRK
SN2 HENFRERRBEAERE
BfE - AEHENFRER - WEX
HoEEMERS X  AEEA
ERANEEMKBEHZEEEEN

;i:( o



ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F#
[

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-
lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

4.8.1 Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

48 MBI R(E)

4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.81 HFEEE(45)
Classification and subsequent measurement of HMBEEEZ D EREETZ
financial assets (Continued) ()

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 MBI R(E)
481 B EE (&)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income, gains
and losses line item in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued) 48 MBI A(E)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 481 HIFBEE (E)

Financial assets at FV/TPL BERTFEGFA B HEEE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for MBS EE T EREEK AR
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or SFrEREAFEGAEMER
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. WASIEEREAFEFAL

e mB A Z R AR AF
(ERPNCE T

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair BERAFEFABZECVBEE
value at the end of the reporting period, with any RMEMRIEZEQATFETE - W
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or TlEEREREANAFEKE
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or HEE  REEERZAEEF
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on BIBRMBEEMFR 2
the financial asset and is included in the “other AR Bk FE - Wt ATH AU

income, gains and losses” line item. A W= Kk EsiEIEE -
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.8 HMBIAR(E)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8.1 A FEEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets HEEEZBE

The Group performs impairment assessment REBRBEEREEREE(E
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on HEEERDEXARBEES
financial assets (including trade and other B SR E o5 AR E R h
receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank LUBEEBFEEHRHAME
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and WHRIE - BIRE R - ZRHIR
cash equivalents) and financial guarantee T BEIRITE KA KR
contracts which are subject to impairment S RASEEY RABERE
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL WIERRET G - BHEEE
is updated at each reporting date to reflect BeBEDREmERMES -
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. AR BAE B R b B )45 8 3R LA
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result AHEHEEEERERE
from all possible default events over the expected TR B FHRNERET
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, BECENBHMEE CTEHE
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime EEE- - Bk 12 AEHE
ECL that is expected to result from default events EEEENRE AR ®12(EA
that are possible within 12 months after the NA e A 2 B EHTETE
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the EZHBHOERBAEREEES
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted B A NREBASEBRTZ
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general FEBEELRET  BRED
economic conditions and an assessment of both AZEBREZ  BRELBERR
the current conditions at the reporting date as well RS RSB ZE Rk R
as the forecast of future conditions. AR AR AR R T8 ORI B B 2 ST

fEtH R -

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for REBE B E S EWKKRIERE
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are REFABEREERE %%
assessed individually for each debtor. EEZEHEEREESRSE

BAE R AT -
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

4.
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FESFHBORBIER)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.
Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.8 HMBIAR(E)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8.1 AL E(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) M EEZHEE)

()  Measurement and recognition of ECL v TEHEEEREZTER
The measurement of ECL is a function of the EHEEBEZFER
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. BEAOBE BEOEBEX
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) (lEHREBERXNRE
and the exposure at default. The KBS RO 2 B o B
assessment of the probability of default and W EREOEIBER G
loss given default is based on historical data TETHERE £ 8k R pilE
and forward-looking information. Estimation MERMED - BEEE
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability- B 2 At R R KR 8
weighted amount that is determined with the BEINESEE - BT
respective risks of default occurring as the FENZBERRIEAE
weights. EMERE °
Generally, the ECL is the difference between —RmE - FAEEEEIE
all contractual cash flows that are due to the BIRBEENENAERE 2
Group in accordance with the contract and FIEaHRensmlrs
the cash flows that the Group expects to EFEHRWER ZBERE
receive, discounted at the effective interest M ZRE (R PR
rate determined at initial recognition. For a ETE2ERFEER) -
lease receivable, the cash flows used for MEWHEMS - ARNE
determining the ECL is consistent with the EEHEEEE RSN
cash flows used in measuring the lease SHRBBEHE BV B®REE
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16. RIZE165k T 2 EUHE & AT

RzBEREEM 2 -

For a financial guarantee contract, the RUBEREOME - R
Group is required to make payments only in BERIAGR  A&EE
the event of a default by the debtor in BERBEEARLRED
accordance with the terms of the instrument N WEBREEBEA
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is HEBBAMEEEES
the present value of the expected payments B EHNRBEAEE
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that FEEEBBA EBAZL
it incurs less any amounts that the Group R EM T RE 2 S
expects to receive from the holder, the B IRE -

debtor or any other party.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 HMBIAR(E)
4.8.1 I HEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(vy  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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FESFHBORBIER)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.
Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 BMBIR(E)
4.8.1 I HEE(E)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

HOBERR 5B ZE ()

BUBRERIR B AN Gt B 2 BF
BEER BEREEHEDK
REWREZEMZENZERET

received and receivable is recognised in profit or REZER -
loss.
On derecognition of an investment in equity IEUH R A S B B IR R

instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance

BEEEAFEFAEMEZERK
AZHEZTERE  ERIRIE
BEARERT Rtz
EETEEHRIBEEERT M
SEBERBEF -

482 BEREREDR

DEREF L E
ERELERTADREBEAENR
BARAETBAEMNERT

with the substance of the contractual BVEE DEAMKAEEGEL
arrangements and the definitions of a financial o

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments #EmTA

An equity instrument is any contract that BRTAABHERBNIIHRE
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an FEBEEREZHGBEERZZ

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

48 MBIR(E)

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) 482 BEERE & ()
Financial guarantee contracts HEEREH
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that HBIERENRBEREITAE

requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.9

410

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4, BRI E ()

Policies (Continued)

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 410 HERIVEFFYERE)
For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash MEmeEeRERNE  BekRa
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and ZEYEFELMATHESRREE
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding BY  MBARBEREEYERAE
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and =R e EIRARI D MR ERRT
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management. BEX - RFBEXREERBAR R K
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings I REEMES -

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

4.11 Revenue Recognition 4.11 Wz i s8

Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEHZ Wzt

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a AEREE (R EITRORERER

performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of Wz RAERTEROBEHEBZE

the goods or services underlying the particular M RB G EIBEEESZ

performance obligation is transferred to the customer. By o

A performance obligation represents a good or service R AR AR 7] B (R ) 2 B an sl AR 75

(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a (S — 1878 m sk R #5) sk — R 51| AT B

series of distinct goods or services that are substantially R M ABAER 2 & R -

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is fil 78 & DA™ Ho R — IR 2R A - 92 6l 22

recognised over time by reference to the progress FERSFRB MEBE - 2R BT

towards complete satisfaction of the relevant *E BRI 2 ERREREIED

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is U

met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and ° RASEEDOE - &P RKR
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s B K GHREASERBOATIR 2

performance as the Group performs; s



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4154 B4 R 2 v

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.11 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (i.e. providing financial guarantee to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the contracts on
sales of properties), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

4.
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4.11 Revenue Recognition (Continued)
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4.

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant

financing component.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract

had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (i.e. sales
commissions in relation to the sales of properties) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or

loss within one year.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.12 Foreign Currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

413

4.14

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

415 Taxation

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.15 Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and interests in joint operation, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.15 Taxation (Continued) 415 BIE (&)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
1o the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)

4.15 Taxation (Continued) 415 BiIA (L)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is ERAAHIBEEERBENBARIES
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets B2 EERGIERERN - A RIELER
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to HEEMELHBABRLSHEF
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the WEBFIMF — R BB 2 TS
same taxation authority. HE - AgEERERHEEEREA
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, BB RIERI B DR IB R -
except when they relate to items that are recognised in fis B HA R 3% RE 0 T8 B2 7 H 2 E K
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in ASKEENERERZIEBRE - Al
which case, the current and deferred tax are also BRREERBRES R EEMER
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in WASEZENERANER

equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are fitd (R (B i) HIR AT B 5 - RIBD AR
presented in net if, and only if, HEEMNHAMBAGE R FHESE
5
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set @ KB B EE RS IR R K
off the recognised amounts; and ERRERE &
(o) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise (o) WMILZFHERELE SRAKE

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. REEREEAE -
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.16 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting
Policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

5.

RS ARG EER
RZEERE
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)  Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings
The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value and buildings are stated at revalued amount based
on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued
amount, the valuer has based its valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison or the
residual method, as appropriate for respective
investment properties, and valuation on net replacement
cost method for buildings, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
appropriate capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value, estimated gross development value, estimated
cost of development and allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development, as appropriate. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market
conditions which are set out in notes 17 and 18. In
relying on the valuation report, management has
exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are appropriate for the
relevant property and reflective of current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, or other
unexpected incidents would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 December
2022, the fair value of Group’s investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings were approximately
HK$19,374,605,000 and HK$33,978,000 (2021:
HK$19,808,515,000 and HK$34,978,000), respectively.

5.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

Net realisable values of properties for sale
Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2022, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was approximately HK$1,063,112,000 (2021:
approximately HK$888,704,000).

5.
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6. Revenue 6. Wik
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AEB ZEFEBEB oW R EMBA DT
and other income is as follows: N
i)  Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) Wik [E R R 5 3R Uk s AR

to Segment Revenue

2022 2021
—g=-C T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 ERHIE157KBER
ezl
Property development* YMIEER
— Sales of completed properties —EBEKTEME
for sale HE 78,611 127,048
Building management and EFEERE MR
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income Rz 7 W A 8,711 8,381
— Building management service — BFERRS
income WA 14,920 14,547
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 37 &5 % 8|
under HKFRS 15 FISHRRABEF AL
pal & 102,242 149,976
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income —HeRESEM
HERA 376,134 418,915
Total revenue g i 478,376 568,891
* The segment names are defined in the section “Segment - DEEBERRWABIHEER]—

information” in note 8.

-
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6. Revenue (Continued) 6. Wz (48)
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) WEER RS E SR (E)
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2022 segment segment Total

RFPEER
BE-_S-_—_f#+-A=+-HiL&E MEBRRSE ReBBESE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT EETT EETT

Geographical markets E TS

The Mainland China* PR R 78,611 - 78,611

Hong Kong &5 - 23,631 23,631
78,611 23,631 102,242

Timing of recognition T 2% B [

A point in time F B ) B 78,611 - 78,611

Over time B B PR HE RS - 23,631 23,631
78,611 23,631 102,242

* For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong * MERMNS  PREAMTIEESRE -

Kong, Taiwan and Macau B KB
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6. Revenue (Continued) 6. Urzs(4)
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) W E PR R B 0 AR (48)
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2021 segment segment Total
BFEBR
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILEE MEZESE HoRBSE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Geographical markets E TS
The Mainland China* B A 127,048 — 127,048
Hong Kong BB — 22,928 22,928
127,048 22,928 149,976
Timing of recognition T 2% B [
A point in time F B ) B 127,048 - 127,048
Over time BE e R HE 75 — 22,928 22,928
127,048 22,928 149,976
* For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong * MERMNS  PREAMTIEESRE -

Kong, Taiwan and Macau B Ve de
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Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 and thus all the revenue
recognised from the contracts with customers on sales
of properties is then allocated to the revenue from sales
of completed properties for sale.

6. Revenue (Continued) 6. Wik (4E)
ii) Performance Obligation for Contract with i) BEESHZEHERE
Customers

YEEE
MEHSERE DN HEBEYEZRYL
XN FEPERR  MEEFER
EEMEREZLMESYEBAILD
M2 B o AR bl S R
HRIAEPRB ZAIERIEEHA
B WHEEAMBRARTARDE
B FREEMERRIZAEMRSFR
g o

AEERR  HRAEHNTRZIRERE
EEEYERETE—F  RUHE
YEWR 2 FEEMFHRIBEISERR
By MASBECEARTZRE
ZEH TREMEARER D HER
7B -

MEERNEBEE2EH(BIEHEE
EANTRAEEDNEERES 2L
BEZRMARITREFFER) ME -
REBEIZBRAEBLEE W
HERPBERBEH 2 EIERHE
o AREERE HEZZZ_FK
TE-—F4+ A=+ —HIEFEER
HEBUEENRMBEREER
FEWTER AL AEEWERD
BRZFABREF&HWE gD
REEEXNTENE 2 HE W -
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers (Continued)

Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining
Performance Obligation for Contracts with
Customers

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

6. W
ii)

i)

= (48)

BEFAHZENERE@&

HEEIERRERFBRA
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R R EE R R E RS K& IE#
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R R 2 P 7 5 B 2 A R 7% B [ B
WER B RE A AR ERE 2 Flas -

SEEERFSHZHERBHERE
ZXHEE

BFEERGEN—REFE—E1F
TR 2GR Bl AREEE
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7. Other Income, Gains and Losses 7. HWA KWEREIE
2022 2021
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
7a. Other income 7a. Hibdg A
Interest income from financial assets EAFEFAEREZ
at FVTPL WM& E 2 A BWA 2,456 6,586
Interest income from loan FEUCE R B A
receivables 533 1,058
Other interest income H At 7 B A 25,162 7,401
Government grants (note 1) BURS #8 Bh (B 3E1) 7,714 3,091
Forfeiture of deposits (note 2) B ETE (M3E2) 5,093 —
Miscellaneous income MW A 11,794 6,981
52,752 25117
7b. Other gains and losses 7b. Hib Wiz RE5E
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B o RN EREREE
receivables, net e 24 182
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREE
and equipment &5 18 = (65)
24 117
Total income, gains and losses WA W R ESiEEEE 52,776 25,234
Notes: M
1. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised 1. REBEZE-_—F+-A=1+—HILFE"
government grants of approximately HK$7,714,000 (2021: NEBGEBSBRAREOMRE ] 5 85
HK$3,091,000) in respect of Employment Support Scheme R NT # Bh 49 78 #57,714,000T (=T = —
provided by the Hong Kong government. F 1 B #3,001,0007T) °
2. The amounts represents forfeiture of deposits upon the termination 2. ZeBEBE_T_F+t-_A=+—H1t
of the sale and purchase agreement on sale of properties during FERIEHEMEZEERARMEK 2

the year ended 31 December 2022. i e
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Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors of the
Company are determined following the Group’s major business
lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Property : Development of residential,
development commercial and industrial
properties

Property leasing Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-

storage operation

Building : Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.

AEERBAANRANTEETEHNERZ
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Segment Information (Continued)

8. HEEANGE)

These operating and reportable segments are monitored and
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment

operating results.

Segment Revenue and Results

HELERAEROBZEERRRZEF
M ERDBEERE -

SEWERER

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
HEER HEHE EFrEBEREMRE SE@E
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—g-C ZE—F ki ZE-—F kil ZE—F ki —T-—F
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(I E751) (B55)) (57)) (s E71)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERETT EcLEwAl EETT EECLSWN ERTT ERELSwAl ST LR
Revenue Iy 23
External customers SPREP 78,611 127,048 376,134 418,915 23,631 22,928 478,376 568,891
Inter-segments (note) &R (M) - - 48 - 3,149 2,787 3,197 2,787
Segment revenue PEWRE 78,611 127,048 376,182 418,915 26,780 25,715 481,573 571,678
Segment profits SERH 12,618 18,520 303,430 353,690 21,626 19,717 337,674 391,027
Certain other income, gains ETEMBA Wi
and losses LER 24,015 7,591
Certain administrative expenses & T/THER (35,466) (45,802)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HENBARZ
subsidiaries (B18),/ W (788) 1,864
Net fair value loss on RENMELNTEBE
investment properties B (464,274)  (1,077,458)
Reversal of impairment losson ~ EMEFRERE
loan receivables # el 247 400
Finance costs BERA (43,079) (24,614)
Loss before income tax expense  BrFT5 B A Al /6 18 (181,671) (746,092)

Note:

Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms.

The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance

costs, net fair value loss on investment properties, reversal of
impairment loss on loan receivables, (loss)/gain on disposal of

subsidiaries, certain other income, gains and losses, certain
administrative expenses and income tax expense.

M ZoBEREERBERE ZGRME

BENAIZHMOBEETRERMERSE
BREMEAFEBEFE RBEETRE
EBEED - HEMRBARZ (B5E), W -

HETHEMKA KmkEE -

RAEAEHAX -

HTITHE
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

8. HEEANGE)

Segment Assets and Liabilities DESEREE
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
YEER YEHE BFEBRRAMBRE SEEH
2022 2021 2022 2022 2021 2022 2021
CECCE ekl CECCF Eebdabal —F-CF Wbl “F-CF Ebduiyid
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BETT LA BETT LA BETT LA BETT
Segment assets PEEE 1,319,550 1,274,779 19,853,742 20,072,949 27,621 23,671 21,200,913 21,371,299
Certain property, plant and ETNE - BEREE
equipment 6,862 5,264
Financial assets at FVTOC! BRATEFA
HEt2EKA
LHBEE 39,656 28,605
Short-term bank deposits REBIER 272,400 251,181
Certain cash and cash equivalents % TH & RBEEZED 703,125 544,955
Assets classified asheld forsale D EAREZEE - 75,300
Total assets BEHE 22,222,956 22,276,604
Segment liabilities PEERE 399,140 317,360 223,532 241,404 9,297 7,631 631,969 566,295
Certain other payables ETEMEMAFE 73,658 56,207
Borrowings e 1,774,527 1,871,501
Deposit received for disposal of K EHBRE 2
subsidiaries BliEe 320,882 -
Provision for income tax FEHEE 121,631 125,595
Deferred tax liabilities BEREER 124,655 115,306
Total liabilities BELE 3,047,322 2,734,904

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, financial assets at FVTOCI, short-term
bank deposits, certain cash and cash equivalents and assets

classified as held for sale.

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain
other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities

and borrowings.

DHREEBRREMBAEE  BETEEETY

EN V=N E

CEAFERFARMER
WAZMBEE RERITER

HTH
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. HEEHNGE)
Other Segment Information Hib o EEH

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total Unallocated
NEER NERE BREERRMRE bE:ER AR
2021 2021 2021 2022 2021 2021
kSl it Sl 3 ZEo-F (ke T £ it Sl 3

HK$'000 EEASYOVE  HKS'000 GICIV)
ERTT EELEel ERTT ke

HKS'000 WRLICOIIN  HKS'000 WRGLEXIIN  HK$000
BETT WLl EXT EELSel EETI

Amounts included in the FAS G E
measure of segment profit: 25
Interest income from financial & ATFEAERZ

assets at FVTPL HREEZFERA 2,456 6,586 - - - - 2,456 6,586 - - 2,456 6,086
Interest income from loan ERE T SIMA

receivables 533 1,068 - - - - 533 1,068 - - 533 1,068
Other interest income E4EY 0N 2,929 426 4 10 4 - 2,937 436 22,225 6,965 25,162 7,401
Depreciation of ight-of-use assets  BEAERE (478) (367) (6,728) (8,289) - (106) (7,206) (8762 = - (7,206) (8762)
Depreciation of other property, ~ Eft#1% - BER

plant and equipment REHE (38) (W} B,77)  (10497) (33) - (5842)  (10,568) - 6) (5842 (10,57)
Reversal of impairmentlosson & 5 M ZE R E

trade receivables, net BEEEER - - 2% 182 - - 2% 182 - - 2% 182
Reversal of impairment losson ~~ FEE SR E BB

loan receivables BE - - - - - - - - 247 400 247 400

Amounts included in the AR EEEGE
measure of segment assets: 2 3 :
Addttions to non-current segment 4 /33

assets during the year FRONEEE 31,107 890 55623 442,865 - - 86,730 443755 - - 86,730 443755
Geographical Information g
The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non- REBZINRE PRz R EIEREE E (B
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into BLTEBRIN DA TR

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

INRE R I 23 ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—g=-= T —F e e T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T BETRT BT T

Principal markets EEHSH
— Hong Kong (domicile) — &7 () 399,765 441,843 19,493,308 19,946,155
— the Mainland China —HERH 78,611 127,048 13,076 14,067

478,376 568,891 19,506,384 19,960,222
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8. Segment Information (Continued) SEEHE)
The geographical location of customers is based on the BERPZBHEDERZMN REER
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered. R ZHBET - ERBEEZHED IR
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on TEREEZERFTEH o
the physical location of the assets.
Information about Major Customer FHRAEXEEFRZEH
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years UTAEBFERERAEEETEERI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as BB EmcEP 2 W
follows:
Year ended
BELUTHHILEEE
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
—g-C T4
+=ZA=1+—H0 Y=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Property leasing (Note) WERE )

— Customer A — BFA N/A 7~ i&E F 60,300
— Customer B — ®FB 51,831 N/A A~ i R
Note: Revenue from Customer A and Customer B did not exceed 10% of WeE: REBEZZ-_—_F+-_A=+—HBKR=ZZ=

total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 —F+ZA=+—HLFE  RABFPARE
December 2021 respectively. P B2z W a5 Bl I 45 18 38 48 W 2 2 10% ©
9. Finance Costs 9. BEIERRAE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Interest expenses on: IAT&EIEZF B
Borrowings BE 40,921 23,756
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,158 858

43,079 24,614
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Loss before Income Tax Expense
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10.

Loss before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/

R BT 13 %i B 2 AU S5 18
BASBEX A AR MG GIA) T3l

(crediting): =
2022 2021
—F¥-= T4
(Restated)
(geE5)
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Auditor's remuneration Z SR BN & 3,086 3,084
Cost of completed properties for sale ERAERALI ZEEXKESE
recognised as expenses (note) ) % B 7N (BT 5E) 46,791 69,204
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 AR & 2 37 & (i 5118)
(note 18) 7,206 8762
Depreciation of other property, plant HEmE BMEMRETE
and equipment (note 18) (Mf7E18) 5,842 10,574
Employee compensation expense EERMBALZ (BIEEEME
(including Directors’ remuneration 52 5E B A K AS) (B 5E12)
and defined contribution cost)
(note 12) 141,455 128,540
Rentals in respect of short-term leases ~ RHHERKEBERE
and low-valued leases e 733 794
Revaluation deficit on property, W BMELEEZER
plant and equipment & 18 120 520
Gross rental income from investment HEWERS W ABE
properties (376,134) (418,915)
Less: Direct operating expense arising BEAHESBAZKRE
from investment properties that MERMEEZERE
generated rental income LT 16,199 19,953
Less: Direct operating expense arising & : KEAB L WA 2% &
from investment properties that MERMEEZER
did not generate rental income S - 93
(359,935) (398,869)

Note: During the year, no reversal of the accruals on construction works
(2021: HK$7,256,000) in respect of the completed properties for
sale sold during the year upon the final payment agreed with the

respective suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2022.

i BET - —F+ A+ -BLEEER
BRI ESHERHTE 2 RIEE - AFRE
BHEEERGEMEMBREZETZET
I (=T —— 4 : #%7,256,0007T) °
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EEREREREZNE

1.

11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments

(a) Directors’ Emoluments (@ EEMW£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were ENSENEEWSAT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses contributions Total
BHER
e FEREN REAMTL AR @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT EETT BETT BETT EETT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-—%
+ZRA=+—-HLEEE
Executive directors BTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Bekat 120 3,918 4,453 18 8,509
Ms. Chan Wai Ling EZ/E 120 4,320 4,174 18 8,632
Mr. Chan Hing Tat REZERE 120 3,401 4,120 18 7,659
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEEEE 120 2,100 175 18 2,413
Independent non-executive directors BUARTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BBl g o 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B L E 168 - - - 168
Mr. Ng Chi Keung REREE 177 - - - 177
1,003 13,739 12,922 72 27,736
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-T--%
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Executive directors BITEE
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Bekrt 120 5,652 5,601 18 11,391
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ /A 120 4,320 5,322 18 9,780
Mr. Chan Hing Tat (appointed on 14 April REERE
2021)* (R=Z=—FmA+MmA
BEME)- 86 3,401 5,169 18 8,674
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEELE 120 2,100 175 18 2413
Independent non-executive directors BILEHTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang R B B 5% 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B L E 168 - - - 168
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 177 - - - 177
969 15,473 16,267 72 32,781

*

The emoluments paid or payable to Mr. Chan Hing Tat

includes emoluments for services as employees of the
Group prior to becoming the director of the Company.

EREeNRENREZEREZBHE -
BEEKAARRESAERNEE

BEZME -
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2021: nil).

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2021: three)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2021: two) individual during the year are
as follows:

N EEREREEEZNE (B)

(a)

(b)

EEWNE ()
EIBTEEMES IR REEEAR
A MA KRB ERZ RIS - £
BUFATESTHME IR MEFEL
BEMXA o

ETHTESEREMEEBRAE
BRINEE ZIEL

o {E 4 39 B R AT TTERAREL -
FAMBTALZHESEFTAREILR

RRFABHRREMHIH (T ——F:
&)

AfimEHAL

AEE - AEEBRURSHALERE
M (T -_—F =)EF - KF
2 R Bl 2 DT o FREER
(R -FMOALTZME
LN

2022 2021
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Basic salaries, bonuses and other EARXFHS  TE4L R

benefits Ha 3,996 4,875
Performance-related bonuses FIRMERIEAL 999 3,288

Pension costs — defined SN DN Y
contribution plan FT &l - 36
4,995 8,199
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEBZME (8)

Emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)
The emoluments of the remaining one (2021: two)
individuals fell within the following bands:

(b)

AfimE#H AL (&)
Ep—fU (T —F MOHALZ
Mo mAaRmT:

Number of individuals

AE

2022 2021
—®E-= —E-—%F

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,001 75 #53,000,0017T —
75 #3,500,0017T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 & #54,500,0017T —
75 5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,001 7 #5,000,0017C —
75 5 500,0017C

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

BHEZZ-_—_FR=-_F-_—F+=H1
“+—BHIEMEFESF  AEEH
EREEY AN TR HTALERN AL
TRME - EREFENMALAERR
RIMAAREER 2 8¢ kBB 2/
B BEMEEERERAERRTM
B ¢ o
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12. Employee Benefit Expense (Including

Directors’ Emoluments)

12. GERFIAZX(BREFWNE)

2022 2021
—_F=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETIT BT T

Salaries and wages (including FehkIBBEEESEHE)
Directors’ remuneration) and bonus RIE4T 134,891 122,539

Pension costs — defined contribution BIKEKA—TEBEERE
plans (note) (fF3E) 4,152 3,637
Staff welfare BT 1EH 2,412 2,364
141,455 128,540

Note: [

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred employee
compensation expenses of HK$46,522,000 (2021: HK$47,713,000)
included in the above employee benefit expense, which is employed on
behalf of the third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building
management services. Such expenses are set-off with other income from
building management services received by the Group.

AEBERERERNUEAES (RES D EE
Pl REFEEERSZNEESHEZEERERE
BEURFEAKENES - R DREEEAHEZ
BAOLEE -

AEERPEABEEZMBARZESES R
WH BT EERREASETE - ZFHBAR
BEHFERAZETAD LAPREKRESEE

-
e

;E W Bk

B

RBE_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—BHLEFERN K&
EeiEFELtiEERMNAIAZEEH LS
#46,522,0007T (— & —— 4 : 5 #47,713,0007T) *
AZEMBARME=ZFRESZFEEREER
AXNNEEFMAS - MzESRAZRASE R
NEFEEBREHMEBEMBATLAKE -
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13. Income Tax Expense

13. IR B2

2022 2021
—T=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BANEH
Tax for the year (note (a)) AN EBIE (B 71 () 27,820 38,012
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax R ZE AT IS AR
(‘EIT): ([EMmRERD
Tax for the year (note (b)) N RIE (M FE (b)) 7,026 10,413
Mainland China Corporate withholding AR B A it 1> 2 FE N FT 15 57
Income Tax (note (c)) (M 5% () 5,983 —
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax ~ H7 B8 (A b £ 3 388 (B FX
(“LAT”) (note (d)) ([ #b 3% (B 7 1) (P 3£ () 30,439 3,863
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAFEREBTIR/
(EBREHE ) 103 611)
Deferred tax charge (note 27) IR FE R I8 X (B 5E27) 9,349 10,331
80,720 62,008

Notes:

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries were subject to Mainland China EIT rate of 25%
(2021: 25%).

Pursuant to the EIT Law of PRC and the Detailed Implementation
Rules, distribution of the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
since 1 January 2008 to holdings companies incorporated in Hong
Kong is subjected to the PRC withholding tax at the applicable tax
rates of 5%.

EFSHMAHNT  2EREEBEREEY
CEELNBZHNEHEER8.25% » MiER
BE2a B TTMAERNZ16.5% B R - T
AHZ RS M ARSI R 2 R EE 8 2 MBS
e B 1216.5% 2 B — B R -

MEFEZEAFESHEDIEGFEZRES
FIHZ T K16.5%=T & -

BE-T-_-_F+t-A=t+-HLEFE"
AEEFEFENBHNE QR Z25% (ZF
S 25%) Z B R B R B N X
PSR

RIBFFECEMERENRERED 8 =F
ZNF-A—RAE  AREBZEMRLZE
P& 2 B 53 Ik P B BB X R R ER 2 MR - 19 7R
RBERRE%HAHEEMS -
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13. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(@

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({Fr % A R £ ANE + 1%
& B & 17 {& 7)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
Mainland China on LAT ({F A R B 1+ b 18 AR E TR0 =
e 40 1)) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the Mainland China is subject to LAT at

Fﬁ'%*ﬁf';ﬁi(..ﬁ
Mt (8)
(@) BRER—NDNEOF—A—BERZ(REA

progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures in relation to the gains arising from sales of properties
in the Mainland China effective from 1 January 2004, with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential

properties ( ¥ @ 1% % (T

%€ ) if their appreciation values do not

exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss before

RAME + M EFHEITIEROIDER -
AF—A=Zt+EtBERZ(PFEARLE
TR ERE TR ERMED) BT
ME—A—A  EREAMEEREER
ﬁimﬁm%\ﬁ%%&ﬁW%%Z%ﬁw
A ARG EEE30% 260% 2 2 #E B R
Mim%ﬁﬁG%E%Wﬁ%%¥%%ﬂ
BEREANBES L BEE@EEPE A
EMEMBREZ2IEERARMEER S
e T BEEFE B EREARBBATNR
THE #5E20% « FBIEEFE 2 MEHER
BT HIEET -

SHASIEBMGHASAEELRER

income tax expense at applicable tax rates is as follows: %R $ FTEZHERWNT
2022 2021
—®=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
T IT BT
Loss before income tax expense MREEHBAXZaERE (181,671) (746,092)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEEFEHH %16.5%
of 16.5% FTE IR (29,976) (123,105)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T ?% MB2EBRZE B a/ 2 87,407 191,274
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERR WA TR B E (10,898) (12,369)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ ARIER 2 T 18 518 2 7%
T 1,268 —
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABEARER B IERE
tax losses (298) (344)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETZE
(HBEER) 103 611)
Provision for LAT for the year FRN LT B ER B 30,439 3,863
Tax effect of LAT deductible for HR B 1 TS R Z—I TD
Mainland China EIT WL HIBER R E (5,022) (637)
Effect of different tax rates of £ E MELERE R EE 2 S
subsidiaries operating in other REIZTRAME &
jurisdictions 2,389 3,175
Effect of Mainland China Corporate B A TR PTG T E
withholding income tax on dividend REWB AR ZKREHLA
income from subsidiaries me 5,983 —
Others Efh (675) 762
Income tax expense FE#HEX 80,720 62,008
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14. Other Comprehensive (Expense)/Income, 14. HE2m(FAZ) WA - 0B

Net of Tax I8

The amount of tax relating to each component of other FHEEMmEEFEX)  BMASIHDZHE
comprehensive (expense)/income can be summarised as SEMI T

follows:

2022 2021
—g=-Z- —E_—F
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
B %t 8 BIE K #iig B BAT A Btk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT EETR EETR BB BT BT

Items that will not be reclassified to X 18 A # T & & #f

profit or loss: DHEEE
Change in fair value of financial & A FEFFAEME

assets at FVTOCI HBAZHBEE

2ATEEH (171) - (171 559 - 559

Item that may be reclassified W TEEREAJEER

subsequently to profit or loss: DHEEE
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation ¥ &5 5h £ 752

of foreign operations 5 (B518), /W (27,912) - (27,912) 18,922 — 18,922
Other comprehensive He2®EBX)

(expense)/income [N (28,083) - (28,083) 19,481 - 19,481
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15. Dividend 15. K2
(a) Dividend Attributable to the Year (@ FEEZEER
2022 2021
—-%=-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BEEAHRESK
(2021: HK$0.20) per share B0 (ZB-—4:
75 #0.207T) 56,662 56,662

Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2021: HK$0.20) per share for
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 1 June 2023 was proposed by
the Directors on 23 March 2023.

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

(b) Dividend Attributable to the Previous
Financial Year, Approved and Paid during the
Year

(b)

Final dividend in respect of the

previous financial year of HK$0.20 78 #0.207T
per share (2021: final dividend of ZE-F RERE
HK$0.20 per share) % B ®0.207T)

B RFE 2 RER S

BEEN_E-_=F=A=-F+=HE=Z
MR -ZE-—=ZFNA—BRINKE
Zff 2 BRI ANFEE AR BT
7020 (Z &8 — — ¢ 4 #0.20
JT) °

RREBHEEZ 2 RAR ST &

RBESANERAREE -

BEMBFEZRE  RERE
#t ot R 32

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

56,662 56,662

261
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16. Loss per Share
The calculation of the loss per share of the Company is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$268,201,000 (2021: HK$807,930,000) and the number
of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2021: 283,308,635) in issue

17.

during the year.

No diluted loss per share for years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 was presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

16. SR EE

AREBREENGTEEREARRAHEEA
JIE 1 N B 18 78 #5.268,201 oooﬂf?f—
F B #807,930,0007T) R F A B 1T LR
f% # H283,308,635M (= & = — i:
283,308,635/%) °

BHE_Z-_—FR-_ZT-—F+-A=+—
BIEFEMEZYSRAEEE A
REE2-_T-—FN_FT-_—F+-_A=+

2021, —RALEFETEEBETZEEERK -
Investment Properties 17. &YX
2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Fair Value AFEE
As at 1 January wn—A—H 19,808,515 20,626,625
Additions R
— Purchase of units — BEEM 397 407,804
— Sublease of leased properties —HHEMHEME 42,581 31,664
— Construction costs — EERA AR 42,513 890
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 37) EBREHEEE (W37 - (75,300)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) i & B8 A 7] (P 3238) (48,300) (105,710)
Disposal of an investment property HEREWME (6,827) —
Net fair value loss on investment properties &M ¥ N FEEIEFE (464,274) (1,077,458)
As at 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 19,374,605 19,808,515
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The Group also subleases its leased
properties under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises
the option to extend. The leases of retail stores contain
minimum annual lease payments that are fixed over the lease
term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores are
determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the
monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2022 and 2021 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value;

17.

REME (&)
AEERBELEHELERESZT IX
REMZERH HeABAXN K&
BAREBEKEMHENCHEHEY R HE
AEAXN ZEHEE—RNBEAR—
EXNF REAHAGERESTERVIAE
HRERHEE - KEHBEHEEH SR
R BRFEABEATELERE  TEEHH
MEEEENHENNEENRESFHE
BN MEEEMHNE THENHEHEN
AANASHEF10% £ 25% L FAHERNHTH
ETNRSEETE -

AL B R 5% % E L PR m b SN
% REARMAREONKREEESRA L
e EHAHE ZFHOLTESNHRE
BEERRESABARERERFTBEZ
MR IR -

AEEMBERENFEEARFEEAE
WD BARFFARKENE -

AEEZRENERBIAEREXRMLE
FEERITARAR(HBERITINR_2=
TERZTEI-F+ZA=TRHIREFEE
A EREE T EENRTzmEELELET
Efh:

o  CEKEREME(EEFEEZT)RA
WABKOEER  EFFREREE
e R RERHEEZE THE
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17. REMERE)

17. Investment Properties (Continued)

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to
market transactions of comparable properties;

° The leased properties under sublease arrangement by
the Group, are revalued based on income capitalisation
method which involves certain estimates, including
capitalisation rates and reversionary rental value; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

e EERKREMEWENEM(BER
X IEXELREEVRIX B TTEY
R)RBREERLERER  Eh2E
ALEMEZTSERS

s AREEIHEZHTZHEEMEIR
WABKOEER  EFFRERE
Motk RREHBE2E THE R

s ERRBEVERAMNBIZEEE
REMH - BEENMEERZENRE
A ORINZEYMERHERBIRIREA
BERNRBERIER K X&B
ERBEMRAETERERKT (B
RERA  EXER - BEKA M
AR AN N 22 0 IR R 3% R P B B IR IR B
R 2 B B i R ) T B

EFEETREMEZATER AEEEE
BYARERBEXMGEMETHE EEE
BPTABREXMEMEE  BFEIRR
FEFERLEEGBERMREUER - f#
BREMEAFELBREXRES  ARES
BEKBRA -
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. REME(E)

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a REBREMFE ZEEBEREIRATE
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment FFE o RMEFERN  UEKREMEEA
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement S EHEIRATETE
during both years.
The following table gives information about how the fair values TR BEANREEZSRENEZR
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, FEGERZFE A ER T RER) 2
the valuation techniques and inputs used). BH e

Investment properties Interrelationship between

held by the Group in significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value

of financial position 31 December 2022 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement

AREARGEMBRAR AZEC-Z TEFTHEYRA

a2z RENE +ZA=+-B2ATE HERK FEFTHEYR TETTRRYB2EE AFEFEZIAME

HK$'000
BETT
Completed investment
properties
EERRENE
Completed investment properties 13,889,000 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value HK$22 - HK$55 The higher the reversionary

(whole block of commercial
building)

BEREEANE
(BEHXET)

Completed investment properties
(individual units (including
commercial, industrial and

residential properties) or ground

floor retail properties)

BEREANE

(BRI Ef(BEEE TXR

EENHTHTEENR)

(2021: 14,640,000)

13,889,000
(20214 14,640,000)

2,034,605
(2021: 2,486,465)

2,034,605
(20214 : 2,486,465)

method

WABRE

Direct comparison
method

BERLEA

BREE

Capitalisation rate

B ®

Price per square foot

B¥HRER

(2021: HK$23 - HK$56)
per month per square foot for
upper-level office/restaurants
premises;
HK$65 - HK$639
(2021: HK$70 - HK$789)
per month per square foot for
ground floor shops
BERAE RESH
FHREA
B2 B B HE5TT
(20215 : B#23LE
BEEB6TT) ©
wRHEFHAREA
B 65T 2 18 156307T
(20215 : BHTOTLE
BHT7897T)
2.25% - 3.5%
(2021: 2.25% - 3.5%)

2.25%%3.5%
(20214 2.25% £3.5%)

HK$8,300 - HK$112,000

(2021: HK$8,300 - HK$120,000)
per square foot for commercial

properties
HK$2,800 - HK$11,300

(2021: HK$2,700 - HK$11,300)

per square foot for industrial
properties
HK$5,400 - HK$26,000

(2021: HKS5,400 - HK$27,200)

per square foot for residential

properties
BENEETAR

75 #8,300T £

7 #112,0007T

(20214 : 48,3002

7 1120,0007T)

TENEBTHREB2800TE

##11,3007T
(20214 : B #2700 2
7 #11,3007T)

EEMEGTHRBES5400TE

7% #26,0007T
(20214 : #5400 2
7 #27,2007T)

rental value, the higher the
fair value

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value

B EEs ATE
HE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the
fair value

STARARLE -
ATEER
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in

17. REMERE)

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2022 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
FEARGAMBRAR RZF=Z& TERTHRHRE
FazREANE +§HE+—EIZ’A¥1E HER A FETURRYR FETTHRRYRZER AFEFEZERMRE
HK$'000
BETT
Leased properties
HEYE
Leased properties under sublease 50,400 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value HK$9-HK$21 The higher the reversionary
arrangement by the Group (2021: 22,050 method (2021: $12-HK$15) per month rental value, the higher the
per square foot fair value

AEEESMZHTZHENE 50,400

(20214 22,050)

Investment properties under re-development

Investment properties under
re-development

3,400,600
(2021: 2,660,000)

ERRENE 3,400,600

(20214 2,660,000)

WABARA

Residual method

RgE

ERRE

Capitalisation rate

ARt %

Price per square foot

SERRMER

Estimated construction and
other professional costs

to completion

At TR RRER

B SN

Estimated profit margin

required to hold and

develop the investment
properties to completion
RERERRENEET

PR & &t LR &

SFRREAEBIOTZEARAT BREAEMS ATEYR
(20215 - B2 E

BA5TT)

3.25% The higher the capitalisation
(2021: 3.25%) rate, the lower the fair

value

3.25% BRfEus ATE
(2021%: 3.25%) HBIE

HK$21,000 - HK$22,000 The higher the price per
per square foot for square foot, the higher the
office premises fair value

(2021: HK$20,000 - HK$22,000
per square foot for office
premises);
HK$25,000 - HK$32,000
(2021: HK$25,000 - HK$32,000)
per square foot for retail
properties
HK$7,200 (2021: nil) per square foot
for industrial properties
BRENEFGIHFREX21000 BEHFRERMER  ALE
2B 22,000T =)
QAF: HAEMEFTAHR
78 #20,0007T & & #22,0007T) :
TENESTIR
7 125,0007T £ % #:32,0007T
(20214 + % 425,000 &
7 #£32,0007T)
I£MEFTHR
78 #7,2007T (20215 < )

HK$2,300 - HK$5,700
(2021: HK$3,600 - HK$3,900)

The higher the estimated
construction and other

per square foot professional costs, the
lower the fair value
FIEHREH23007T A REREBELRA
ZBH5,700T HE ATELE
(20214 : 73,6007
ZH%3,0007T)

10% - 15%
(2021: 10%)

The higher estimated profit
margin, the lower the fair
value

10%£15% e MEEEs ATE
(20214 10%) AR
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Investment Properties (Continued)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
investment properties other than disclosed above during the
year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of approximately
HK$11,715,400,000 (2021: approximately HK$12,699,100,000)
were pledged to secure borrowings of approximately
HK$1,774,527,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,871,501,000)
(note 26).

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of HK$2,200,600,000 are
related to a sale and purchase agreement entered by the
Group with an independent third party on 9 August 2022, to
sell the entire interests of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Linking
Smart Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) at a
total consideration of HK$3,208.8 million. The Disposal Group
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
immediate sole shareholder of the owners of the investment
properties. As at 31 December 2022, total deposit of
HK$320,881,500 were received by the Group from the
purchaser and included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “trade and other payables”. Details of
the above transaction are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 August 2022 and 19 January 2023
respectively and the circular of the Company dated 23
September 2022.

On 19 January 2023, the Group, the purchaser, the seller
guarantor and the purchaser guarantor entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to extend the date of the
purchaser’s payment of the further deposit of HK$320,881,500
for six 6 months from 9 February 2023 to 9 August 2023 with
the interest of HK$11,200,083 agreed to be paid and paid on
8 February 2023.

Details of the Supplemental Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 January 2023.

17.

REMEE)
GO\ EBESN - FRNRE YR R
TmE -

ATEHEER ERBRANE I RER
SERR - ETRANEZ A TECEH
B DAHERR B AT AT R M A D
BB -

RZZBZZF+A=+—H FXKEEH
IR T 4B (B £ 78 #11,715,400,0007T (—ZE ——
& #)78#12,699,100,0007T) 2 & TR E Y
553 DK B B 8R40 78 61,774,527,0007T
T 493 #1,871,501,0007T) 2 15
B (M 5E26)

RZBE-—F+-A=+—H A&£EEA
48 {6 75 2 200,600,000 2 & TR E W2
&&KEI%_E::iﬂﬂhEﬁ%ﬁ
FZFE MU E 2 EWE 2 A Linking
Smart Lmlt(%d&ﬁﬁﬂf_é% AITHEERE])D 2
HEZ EEHE BREABE
3,208,800,0007T ° ﬁ%%ﬁ%K@ﬁZ%
BENBARI M EMERBAZEEZRE—
R - R—_FBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H A&
B 1t B 5 U B % & 48 58 78 #320,881,500
T WAt ASRETBMRA R Z B S R HA
ﬁﬂhﬂ@# LR GHIBERARE A
DRABZE_—_FNA+—HEZZEZ_=F
—AThhBZAEURBHRAE-ZE-_—_FAH
AZt+=Hz@BHFHEE -

RZEZ_=F—HA+NA *&£E BF -
EFTERAREFERAGI LA (1
THED) BEAEEREKE 7 ZTi#
—*E%%M%m&5mﬁ25%k§ﬁ
GEA A= =—F_ANALERZE
—=FNAA1B" IﬁmﬁiﬁﬂM%%
11,200,0837C * ZHMEERZZE=_=F_A1
NEEE e

MABEFBIARNARRAHRA =T ==
F-RA+TABZRER -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. Y% - B E Rk @

Leasehold Leasehold  Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties
1"
HELH [ ks HENEEE KERRE RE HEN% a8
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 80,541 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
Additions -V = - - 400 - 839 1,239
Disposalwrite-off HE /s - - (158) - - - (158)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) ERBR L0 - (120) - - - - (120)
Depreciation & (554) (880) (4,699) (124) (139) (6,652) (13,048)
Exchange realignment ERAE (596) - - 7 (12 - (601)
Closing net carrying amount FREAFE 79,391 33,978 5,096 609 i 2,713 122,528
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZF
+ZA=t+-H

Cost/Valuation KA/ fEE 88,032 33,978 47,601 13,219 3,34 11,447 197,618
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (8,641) - (42,505) (12,610) (2,600) (8,734) (75,090)
Net carrying amount REFE 79,391 33,978 5,096 609 1 2,713 122,528

Analysis of cost/valuation B&/fEEMT
Atcost BRA 79,391 - 5,096 609 ™ 2,713 88,550
At professional valuation REEMHE - 33,978 - - - - 33,978

79,391 33,978 5,096 609 ™ 2,113 122,528
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + [ &= R R & (&)
Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles  Leased properties Total
&
HELH BT HENELE RERRE AE HENE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,18 16,722 151,450
Additions -V - - 3,390 7 - - 3,397
Disposal/write-off e/ - - - (14) (79) - (93)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) 1G] (i3 ) - (520) - - - - (520)
Depreciation & (566) (880) (9,426) (118) (150) (8,196) (19,336)
Exchange realignment ERAR 302 - - 8 8 - 318
Closing net carrying amount FREAFE 80,541 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
As at 31 December 2021 R=%=-%
+ZA=t+-H
Cost/Valuation A/t 88,930 34,978 47,759 12,893 3,367 24729 212,656
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (8,389) - (37,806) (12,567) (2,475) (16,203) (77,440)
Net carrying amount REFE 80,541 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
Analysis of cost/valuation B&/fEEMT
At cost BRAR 88,930 - 47,759 12,893 3,367 24,729 177,678
At professional valuation REEHE - 34978 - - - - 34,978
88,930 34,978 47,759 12,893 3,367 24,729 212,656

The above items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands/leased properties
Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Over the lease period
2%

10%-30%

10%-20%

6%-15%

FilimE BREEAXBEBEAEGFAR
HARAERESE R TIFEEFEEFHRE
& :

ME+#H HEWE REHA
BF 2%
HEWREKE 10%-30%

Bl KERRE
E

10%-20%
6%-15%
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. #1% « & R & 6 (&)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong RZZBZZF+ZA=1+—0 £EERE
are stated at valuation of HK$33,978,000 (2021: 7 2 B F DA E B 33,978,000t (ZF =
HK$34,978,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W — 4 1 B #34,978,0007T) I BF - NEE
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31 EFHEERTRIFEEXNNEEMR - &
December 2022, a revaluation loss of approximately E_E:ZEJF‘)EJ:JF*EJJ:ETEEﬁE?
HK$120,000 (2021: Loss HK$520,000) had been recognised. A B 120,000 (ZEZ—F : BHEAK

520,0007T) EFER

As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land and buildings of the RZZEZZF+ZRA=+—0  AEEEHR
Group with carrying amount of HK$96,321,000 (2021: BREE A/5196,321,0007T (ZZE——F : /&
HK$97,397,000) were pledged to secure borrowings of the 197,397,000 0) 2 HHE L R F AR
Group (note 26). KEBZIEE (M 5E26) ©
The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a REBEREF 2 ATEREIRLEEMER
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the FEFE FYVRFERATFEEHBCEE
opening and closing fair value balance is provided below. ;HYWT o
There was no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year. RAFE - WEE A L HEIR -
2022 2021
—g=-C T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FUEAR(BIREF N
fair value) NEE) 34,978 36,378
Depreciation e (880) (880)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held ~ EfhEF1EE R E 2 E#E
for own use (120) (520)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair F BR(EBIMEE M

1R
value) NFEE) 33,978 34,978
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + & &= R & (&)

In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the owner-occupied buildings, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building
held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation Significant
at revaluation model 31 December 2022 technique(s)
RZBZZ%§
AEARARER +=ZRA=+-H
BEAEZRF ZATHE HERE
HK$'000
BETT

unobservable input(s)

TEFARRYE

EEEBRTAVER AEECZBBEY
BEBEXRMEMETHE - EEEES
TREMBEMLEMESEREIRDTE
EFEEE 2 HERMEEBIE - HERE
FRAFELREAES  HERESFTHRE
KERE -

RAFE  HERNHEZE -

ATEHENER FRNEZ SEREE
Mg REEEARTEER.

TRV BB AETRSETATAE
B2 B8 B A (B B R BOB) 2 B K -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable
input(s) and fair value
measurement

Range of significant
unobservable inputs

FRTTHRENBA
TEFAREUE2EE ATEABZEAME

Owner-occupied buildings

BREF 33,978 (20214 : FEEKAR
34,978

Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

BYARETEERA

33,978 (2021: 34,978)  Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4,300 per square foot The higher the building
per square feet

(2021: HK$4,300) (note) replacement cost per feet

with reference to

comparables, the higher

the fair value

G REE4,300 SRALBNEZBREF
(20215 : M4 3007 (M EBEMAHR  ATEM
i) B

M 8FTREFEERATIZENS LALR
ZRETREMEE  EhsthBE LEMN
RpgERBEYBASEMENRZE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The Group as Lessee
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment)

As at 31 December 2021 MN-_E-—F
+—A=+—8
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F
+=-A=+—H
For the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—_—%F
December 2021 TZA=T—HILFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ
Exchange realignment M 5, o B
Total cash outflow for leases MERSRLRHE
For the year ended 31 HE_ZT-_—F
December 2022 TZA=FT—RIEEFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ
Exchange realignment B 3, 38 B
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRLERR

18. W% « BB RHE (&)
FEEESRHEA
ERRAEGIANE  BERRE)

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total

HELH# HEME 4R

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EETRT EETR EETR

80,541 8,526 89,067
79,391 2,713 82,104
(566) (8,196) (8,762)
302 - 302
(12,108)

(554) (6,652) (7,206)
(596) - (596)
(24,359)

For both years, the Group leases various commercial and
industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have
extension options as described below. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

RMEFE AEEHETABERTE
MEAMEEE - MOU=ZZWF 2 EEF
HARTSL - MERIN T X Pl A IR 124 o
R EEE M R AP A AU AR R
BEMAHOZERLEETANBRINITZ
FH -



18.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The Group as Lessee (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December

18.

ME - BERRIEE
AEEEHZEBANE)
AEBERETRERELRIENENEE
THRAEREEREE RTEER/EDE
ERNMAEEEERKLLEMANEELY
BRI Ay EREZEEH
AEBEITEM AR HAAAMA L HEAITE -
AEEREERBBERTERERERTE
STELEREREE AKBEYREAERE
ETEEREZENZSERRBEENRZ

8% AT S 48 -
BIETE .

Potential future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities
as at 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021
R+-B=+—B#®2EH R+-ZB=+—-BXRFAANHEEEREMN
HEaRE BERKREEMFR
k- ot —8=--% —EZCE —E-—f
(undiscounted) (undiscounted)
(RIFH) (RIFR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok BT BT T
Commercial and EERIENE
industrial premises - &%
— Hong Kong 50,615 29,428 134,873 91,507
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the REBE—E-_—_FR-_E-—F+-A=+

Group did not exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no
such triggering event.

—RIEFE - AN BT EE AT RE
Bk

PN REBEEBREMHSBERHBRERE
BEBRNEAB AT HER  AEEH
SELEERTCTEEREEE -REE
TR oFR-E - —F+ZA=+—HL
FE - -WEBEEESEMT-
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. #1% « & R & 6 (&)
Restrictions or covenants on leases HE FE fﬁ'] B 25
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$50,615,000 are recognised o RZEZZF+Z A=+ —BERHE
with related sublease of the leased properties of EET /%MSOGBOOOTE MEWZE 2 H#
HK$50,400,000 included in investment properties and right-of- B %50,400,0007CET AR EME - MfE
use assets included in property, plant and equipment of FA#E & E B 2,713,000 T A E - R
HK$2,713,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: lease liabilities REBECE-_—F HEAEBK
of HK$29,428,000 and related sublease of the leased 29,428,000t R EME 2 HA DB
properties of HK$22,050,000 included in investment properties 22,050,000TCET AR EME - UREREE
and right-of-use assets included in property, plant and E 7 #8,526,0007T 5t AW % - W B K&
equipment of HK$8,526,000). The lease agreements do not )  REEAARBNNHEEEENERE
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the =N HEBETENEMNRZE  -HEE
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may ETGREREFUEME -
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
19. Properties for Sale 19.
2022 2021
—gF=-C —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HZEKHEE 888,704 940,144
Additions R 235,612 56,930
Disposals & (46,791) (76,460)
Adjustment (note) FAE () - (40,960)
Exchange realignment e H & (14,413) 9,050
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEHEE 1,063,112 888,704
2022 2021
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Completed properties for sale EENFEDE 213,186 277,143
Properties under development FEERDYE
for sale 849,926 611,561
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HZzEEE 1,063,112 888,704
Note: The amount represents the reversal of the accruals on construction Wik: ZeBEEEE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HL

works in respect of the completed properties for sale remained
unsold at the end of the reporting period upon the final payment
agreed with the respective suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2021.

FREERKNESHERAGE 2 KHER
FMEMRIMAE N 2 EEKFEYE MR
B2 T2 BT A
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19. Properties for Sale (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, properties under development for
sale of HK$611,561,000 (2022: Nil) represented the carrying
amount of the properties expected to be completed over one
year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
approximately HK$3,360,000 (2021: HK$3,360,000) to jointly
develop a property site for residential purpose located at 1-11
Lai Yin Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in
which the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the
Directors determined that the Group’s share of the completed
units would be put up for sale when completed and,
accordingly, reclassified its proportionate share of the interest
in this property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, there is no revenue and cost of
properties for sale recognised.

19.
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. ES RHMEWRIE TEWK
Receivables [=§N
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
EET T BET T
Current assets: HEEE -
Trade receivables 5 W FIR
— contract with customers —EFEE&4 9,753 7,255
— rental receivables —EWHEe 40,834 27,451
Total trade receivables g5 FE W = I8 48 58 50,587 34,706
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (4,022) (4,667)
Total trade receivables, net BoREINGIEBRE  FE 46,565 30,039
Loan receivables (Note) FEU & s (B FE) 145,680 147191
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (141,776) (142,023)
Total loan receivables, net el E R ERE - F A 3,904 5,168

Other receivables, utility deposits and H b fE Y 3R IE ’R H IR

prepayment Hz‘i\&i‘ﬁﬁ KIE 123,601 116,550
Total trade and other receivables DEERDEECZES R
categorised as current assets E {th fE U R 1B 4A KA 174,070 151,757
Non-current assets: FETEEE -
Loan receivables (Note) FE U & s (B FE) 5,906 16,552
179,976 168,309
As at 1 January 2021, the gross carrying amount of trade RZEBE_—F—A—H KEEEFAHHN
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to B 5 WA 2 BR A 4218 & 78 13,933,000

HK$3,933,000. JC °
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, based on invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, was the following:

20. S RHEMBKRIE FEWK

B®&(E)
RZBEZ—FR-_FE-_—F+=-A=+—
A REZZAH EFEKFENRE
EEEREEE CRROTERINOT

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T T IT

0-30 days 0FE 30K 16,854 10,950
31-90 days 31E90K 13,669 8,863
91-180 days 912180k 8,075 2,508
Over 180 days B iB180K 7,967 7,718
Total trade receivables, net Eo RN BRE  F 46,565 30,039

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$46,565,000 (2021: HK$30,039,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$16,042,000 (2021: HK$10,226,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RNE BUESRSBERZZEFDE
HERKESIN AEETEREMES
Y BR 4K 4

R-TE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 Xr&EFEE
FERGELEHBENR TS AHE B R
T 42 (B 75 146,565,000 (ZZE = —F : /8
#30,039,0007T) 2 & 7 A o 1f 1 Hi 4 &2
o B 16,042,000 (ZE = — F 1 B
10,226,0007T) B @ Hio0 & sk MA £ » Wiz F
BREBEYN FRARZEEKABRLAERS
ROTEBBEE MZEEBAHESAR
ERBEELTHERBRTIE 2R -

BRAE S EUGRIA 2R IE B R IA B F AR
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. ES REMEBEWKWRIE FEK

Receivables (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 39.2(b).

Note:

As at 1 January 2021, included in loan receivables is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate minus 2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year
from reporting date. The repayment date of these loan receivables was
extended by one year during the year ending 31 December 2021 and
further nine months during the year ended 31 December 2022 with a
principal repayment of HK$400,000.

For the remaining loan receivables amounting to HK$6,210,000 (2021:
HK$17,720,000) which are secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime
Interest Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2021: 2% to 2.5% per annum)
for the first 36 months from the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at
the Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate. The loan receivables were repayable in
216 to 360 monthly instalments (2021: 216 to 360 monthly instalments)
with the final instalment payable in year 2035 to 2047 (2021: year 2035 to
2047). As at 31 December 2022, loan receivables of HK$1,137,000 (2021:
HK$10,276,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the
principal and accrued interest after 60 months after drawdown date.

The current portion of HK$3,904,000 (2021: HK$5,168,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year is classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$5,906,000 (2021: HK$16,552,000) is classified as
non-current assets which is expected to be recovered over one year.

No loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan stated above) are past
due as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The loan receivables are secured
by second mortgage on the properties located in Hong Kong (other than
the Unsecured Loan stated above). The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There
has not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loans receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 39.2(b).

E;FA("‘H)
HE_ZE-_—FR-_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—
AIEFEEZEIRGRIE Hi W RIE R
& 2R EF M EF B E A M 5E39.2(0) ©

i

RZE-_—F—A—B JIABKRERALEE
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T — 4 : #1#5168,0007T) D HE AR EE E - 8
3878 855,906,0007T (=T =—F : #%16,552,0007T)
DEAERBDEE  BHENBB—FRKME -
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MNEB 2 R EER (R Ll EERERIN -
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Financial Assets at FVTPL/FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

As at 31 December 2022, included in financial assets at FVTPL
are structured bank deposits of HK$38,884,000 (2021:
HK$2,815,000) placed with a bank in the Mainland China and
contain embedded derivatives which returns are determined by
reference to the return of the underlying portfolio of listed
shares invested by the bank and the duration of deposits
placed. The deposits could be withdrawn at the Group’s
discretion and are subject to early termination option of the
issuing bank at the price of the principal outstanding plus the
return of underlying portfolio of listing shares up to the date of
withdrawal/early termination. Annual return rate as at 31
December 2022 is 2.08% (2021: 3.42%).

The structured bank deposits are reclassified as financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows do not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
are stated at fair values based on valuation provided by the
issuing bank. The fair value measurements are categorised to
Level 2.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2022, financial assets at FVTOCI which
were investment in unlisted funds of HK$39,656,000 (2021:
HK$28,605,000) are stated at fair values.

Directors have elected to designate the investments as at
FVTOCI as they believe that the investments are held for long-
term strategic purposes and not expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future.

Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2022 are
stated at fair value based on the net asset value of fund (i.e. fair
value of the portfolio included in the fund). The fair value
measurements are categorised to Level 2.

21.
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term
Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as

22. ZRFVMITHERERRTH

HHERELEEYD
AREZRSRBITBBZBENT

follows:
2021
T —%F
HK$’000
BT
Restricted bank deposits 2R FR 1T 7 30 - 16,110
Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=ZEAZ
maturity over three months RERITE R 272,400 251,181
Cash and cash equivalents BehBREEEY 1,122,544 885,358
Total cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE BT 1,394,944 1,152,649
Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents earn ZREBITFRIALBRELBREFEDR

interest at floating rates based on the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates of range from 4.05% to 6.10% (2021 : 1.50%)
per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$138,578,000 (2021: HK$306,449,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

B ERRITHE RN XL F M KRS o

R-ZE-——Fr-_FT-—F+-A=+—1"
REHBAERBE=ZEMAZEHRBTRE
REREFHRRE—F QT AREEZ A
ReFRmE TEBRSEZEHERF
FIENT4.05%E610% (ZF=—%F : 1.50%)
BRER[E E F R 2 FI 8 -

AAAEERE RBITEBBERETN
A B A b % 5 4R 17 A& 0% #5138,578,000

T (T ——1F : B#306,449,0007T) 2 AR
BIARBDHERITES - AREIIER
BEREZBEE - RERENM 2 INEE
BIEOI R EE  SERMNESERT &
SERECHBEEETINEER ZRITU
AN RS INEE o

E=RRn BHekA2
FEHETEERER -
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term 22, ZTRFBITHER EHRIT

Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents BRERRELEEM(E)
(Continued)
In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened REBFBREF  BTHBRARIUERER
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on F=H(MBARAEREEFERRSE 2
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided ADUGEREARZRFESE TRITE
building management services. As at the reporting date, those F o REE A - %% A E05189,899,000
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties TL(ZZ——4F : B #82,242,0007T) Z R 1T
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial ERTDUERRARE=Z7HFEF TER
statements of the Group amounted to HK$89,899,000 (2021: REEZGFEMHEMERANTER -
HK$82,242,000).

23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B RHMWEMRKIE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Trade payables B S RIE 18,466 17,406
Receipt in advance TEU R IE 26,013 25,127
Deposits received on disposal of HEWBAR 2B WIZE
subsidiaries (note 17) (Bt 5217) 320,882 —
Deposit received on disposal of an HEREME 2 ERIZS
investment property (note 37) (FF 5E37) — 1,500
Rental deposits received BElWHEEEE 136,989 156,653
Accruals on construction works BT EIE 192,573 200,661
Other accrued expenses and other Hib 2R &
payables H fth J& 5K I8 160,403 144,542
855,326 545,388
Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days. B REMNRIEBZEEHN FI0EWX - 1B
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables BREOH BZEMFBEZERESTEH
was the following: a0 -
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
0-30 days 0E30XK 4,787 4,101
31-90 days 31E90K 963 3,254
Over 90 days B BI0K 12,716 10,050

Total trade payables B 5 RN RIA R 18,466 17,405
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24. Contract Liabilities =R =R
2022 2021
—g=-C T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Deposits received in advance EARBEMN TR 2
associated with pre-sale of HFEMECEREE:
properties for sale situated in:
— Hong Kong — BB 113,496 7,006
— the Mainland China — R A 7,072 40,180
120,568 47,186

As at 1 January 2021, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
is HK$27,682,000.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, deposits received in
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties for
sale are expected to be completed and sold within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

R-Z-_—%—A—RH &HaEZKEE
7375 #27,682,0007T °

AEBR T _FR-T—F+ A=
T AR EERRBESHMRES —FR
RTIRHEZHFENERRIRE -
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24. Contract Liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

24. 8RB (E)
TRIITAEEREEANEERER M
HEWURERBEBNETY BOEE
Ry & o

Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
SHEEER HEDEMK
HEYE SEME
8EFE-—%T=-C BHE-_T—_—F
T A=1+—H ppeYiasad=
IEFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in st AF I AN ABHEHZ
the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 31,431 14,487
Revenue to be recognised from AARBITRABESTER
unsatisfied performance obligations P& 593,622 82,193

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

FECHERAGNABRSE Z—REFUER

AEEEEFPZEEEHEFWREOE
BZ10%EI0NIER/EFRIE » AM @ A%
Bl BT - A EEBREFREH]
T ARREFPREERETRINAER
THRERFXNRERE - ZFTLER
EEBRDERZENRABRRENEAE &
EEFPRBLERGENEZITHRAL -
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25. Lease Liabilities 25 HEEBE
2022 2021
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BT
Lease liabilities payables ENEEEE
Within one year —F R 20,912 13,729
With a period of more than one year — & IA 29,703 15,699
50,615 29,428
Less: amount due for settlement B M2 B AR HEE A
within 12 months shown RBABECSE
under current liabilities (20,912) (13,729)
Amount due for settlement after 12 #1218 B4 B H/E (B % A IR T
months shown under non-current BEzE®
liabilities 29,703 15,699
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to ERREEAB 2 METHESEERX
lease liabilities is 3.93% (2021: 3.93%). A3.93% (ZT=—4 : 3.93%)
All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional FMEMEREHUEBEEER ks

currencies of the relevant group entities. ¥EtE -
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26. Borrowings 26. &5
2022 2021
—g=- T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Current liabilities mBas
Bank loans — secured RITER—HIEM 87,728 1,396,158
Non-current liabilities EmEAaE
Bank loans — secured RITER—BEM 1,686,799 475,343
1,774,527 1,871,501
Carrying amount of bank loans BIBEBERBZEANEHTETER
repayable based on the scheduled HERE(EE 2 RITEHNER
repayment dates set out in the loan HiE:
agreements:
Within one year —F A 87,728 1,396,158
More than one year, but not —FUAEBETBBMRE
exceeding two years 595,072 26,297
More than two years, but not MEN FETBRRAF
exceeding five years 1,091,727 449,046
Total bank loans RITE KB 1,774,527 1,871,501
Carrying amount of bank loans matured R —FREB A ZRTER Z
within one year (shown under current FEEGIRABER)
liabilities) (87,728) (1,396,158)

Amount shown under non-current ERBEEMY S
liabilities 1,686,799 475,343
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26. Borrowings (Continued) 26. IBE(48)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, bank loans are secured by RZEZZFR-TE-_—F+ZA=+—
certain investment properties, certain properties for sale and B SROTERDURNSEEREEEBELNBE
property, plant and equipment of the Group with a total 12,661,647,00000(= T = — F: & K&
carrying value of approximately HK$12,661,647,000 (2021: 12,796,497,0007T) 2 & TR EWE - BTH
HK$12,796,497,000) as set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively EMEURYE  BERZXEERIEKR -
to the consolidated financial statements. 7 B E P ER A B 75 R 3R Y FE17 818 o

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 39.2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRIAKBREZHRTANIMBAZ N
HNARE BB WK M RE39.2() ©

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

REEEMAEEE S BEANENT

2022 2021
—g=-C —T-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T
Bank loans MITER
— HK$-denominated loans ~ — B E & Hong Kong Hong Kong
Inter-bank Inter-bank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) (“HIBOR?)

+1.12% p.a. to

HIBOR+1.30% p.a.

EHIRITEZE
FRR(EERZE
A +EFE

112% EE#E

FE ¥
+5E | F1.30%

+1.15% p.a. to
HIBOR+1.6% p.a.
BEBRITRZE
wE(EERZE
B ) +FE R =R
116%EE B
R E
+FFIE1.6%
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27. Deferred Taxation 27. BEBIE
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: FEERIARE &8N T:
2022 2021
—E-= —ET——
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
As at 1 January n—HA—H 115,306 105,945
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: ~ RIA T EB K, (Gt A) 2
iR RE TR IA -
— Profit or loss (note 13) — #BExR (W13 9,349 10,331
— Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) — HEHB A A 5E38) - (970)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 124,655 115,306
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets INTAERGEMBRAERER 2 EEIRILE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position MEBEEREEARRAEFERBEFE
and the movements during the current and prior years: pad-3N
Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax occupied
depreciation properties Tax losses Total
niE EfEHA
BRERE MERG BIEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BT T BETT

As at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—F—H 106,336 6,554 (6,945) 105,945
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZEMEG/ GIA) (M 13)

(note 13) 10,810 (86) (393) 10,331
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(g)) & B 22 8] (B 5E38(g)) (970) - - (970)
As at 31 December 2021 R-T-—F+-A=1+—H 116,176 6,468 (7,338) 115,306
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RIEBREMB/ GIA)(F3E13)

(note 13) 9,904 20) (535) 9,349

As at 31 December 2022 RZZE--%+-A=+—H 126,080 6,448 (7,873) 124,655
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 27. BEBIE(E)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has aggregate amount of RZZEZZF+A=+—H KAKEBEH
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings AR B A M B B A B R 0 IR BN 2 AR B R
of the Mainland China subsidiaries of approximately M 2 BE 4 %A 4978 526,825,000 (— T ——
HK$26,825,000 (2021: HK$75,049,000) of which no deferred F B #75,049,0007T) I 5 SRR 1T A TE
tax liabilities has been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities BE BHRAEEEHITEHERBARZ
have been recognised in respect of these differences because REBKAREETRAZEWBE AR R
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of its BT EERRE MU BB ZEERE
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will BRELHBEE Bt EEEZEHT
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. ERAIR A RER o
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RMERAR AEBEEARDARBBED
losses of approximately HK$64,006,000 (2021: 7 64,0060007L(= T = — F: B K
HK$54,885,000) available for offset against future profits. A 54,885,00077:)7%7?\%5 HAR @A o 25t
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ZEBE®R L MBBEEHNBEK
approximately HK$47,715,000 (2021: HK$44,473,000 million) of 47,715,0007C (=& = — 4 : 7B 44,473,000
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in T0) ° PR A A A TR Eﬁllﬂ:iﬁ?ﬂi
respect of the remaining approximately HK$16,291,000 (2021: FLER T 478 116,291,000 (Z B —4F : /&
HK$10,412,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. #£10,412,00070) FERIREF B B EE ©
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RERTIEE BB AH%E"EE“L%EF?&
approximately HK$4,440,000 (2021: HK$2,191,000) which will B HA 7 E5 18 49 78 54,440,000 (ZZF =
expiry by five consecutive year. Other losses may be carried & B #2,191,0007T) o E b & 18 0 R 2
forward indefinitely. e o
28. Share Capital 28. &
2022 2021
—g-C- —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
&8 BETT R EE BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10  HRXEEE #0102
each TER 5,000,000,000 500,000  5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BERIRER:
As at 1 January and R—A—BE
31 December +-A=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331




29. Reserves

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8t —F — —F+ - H=+—HIF FZ

20. &

The Group xE
2022 2021
—g-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share premium (note (a)) % 17 % 1B (Bt 5% () 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] R 1 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Investment revaluation reserve HEEGHE 388 559
Retained profits R85 A 18,420,614 18,745,477
Exchange reserve & 5 (1 (24,740) 1,241
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B = 4 (B 3 (0)) 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEAREBEER RS
(note 15(a)) (K 3E15(0)) 56,662 56,662
19,145,878 19,496,893
Notes: B 5
(@) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) B EEEMRBRESRERTRMAE

over the par value of share issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from

retained profits.

(©) The special reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 184
to 187 to the consolidated financial statements.

ZEH -

) EXEREEEESRQEROEEZX
B REAeNEEAREER -

© ARBEZFIREREREAEE-NALF
EHEBARFERTRAEERIBIMNE AR
BAEEZER -

LiiRE s BB HFBERNGEAUERERE
1B4E1STE 2 i G BB K
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29. Reserves (Continued)

29. fiEfE(E)

The Company AAT
Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% BEAHR
RiiEE RERE ABES  REEN  BIRE E L
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RETT BB RETT BB RETT BB
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)
(it 3£ (e) (P 3 (o)) (M3 ()
Asat 1 January 2021 RZF--5-H-H 690,811 295 1,263,288 581,154 56,662 2,592,210
Profit and other comprehensive ~ EREFIR £t 2ERA
income for the year - - - 621 - 621
Final dividends paid BER-Z2-_25XH
for 2020 (note 15(0)) T 8. (M 15(0) - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividends BE-_S-EXH
for 2021 (note 15(a) 8 (i i 15(a) - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2021 . S
+-A=1-AR 690,811 1,206,626 581,775 56,662 2,536,169
Profit and other comprehensive ~ EREFIR E2ERA
income for the year - - 407 - 407
Final dividends paid ERZE-£X5
for 2021 (note 15(o)) T 5 (P 315(0) - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividends BE_T__ERHE
for 2022 (note 15(g)) & (Fi 3 15(e) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—%
+-A=1-H 690,811 1,149,964 582,182 56,662 2,479,914
Notes: M

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Bty BRI ESRERITRMEE
ZEHE-

EABEOHEBREESNCEBERBERNE
BEZHHE -

BN E R TH IR B 1T AR X Lucky Spark Limited
(—RKHWBERE) 2HEBITEBRZAAT
et mEEMKENEARIEEFEEE
ZEHE - BEBEBRE-NN—FR8EK
1B5]) BB TBEATARRR Z BN R T
DIETARE o A - MEBEEUTER A2
AT AR EMEHE RS IR B S fEH S
i

(1) TEEHNIMNETEINERHANT 2
A% =X

@ HEEZREREREIREER
EEATIRA R B 5 B MR 2 485 -
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30. Commitments 30. & 1E
Capital Commitments EEXxiE
2022 2021
—g-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Contracted but not provided for: EETHIME R B4
- Acquisition of investment properties — R EME 17,641 54,679
- Acquisition of fund investments — WEHAERE A TE
included as financial assets at AHMEEKA Z
FVTOCI BBEEZESRE - 10,920
17,641 65,599
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve months. FIEEREAEHNRARKT_EARNEIH -
31. Operating Leasing Arrangements 3. KEHERH
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as HEZAFTRERBAENREOT:
follows:
2022 2021
—g—-= T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Within one year —F R 291,428 344,501
In the second year FF 164,366 179,739
In the third year BE=4F 44,313 56,428
In the fourth year FE IO 15,189 14,112
In the fifth year ERF 5,699 14,037
Over five years AFMNE - 4,150

520,995

612,967
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31.

32.

Operating Leasing Arrangements
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2021: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$1,348,000 (2021:
HK$3,412,000).

Financial Guarantee Contracts

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$51,166,000 (2021:
HK$90,564,000) to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery of the
properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
of the mortgage with the relevant mortgage registration
authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee is not significant.

31.

32.

SEHERHGE

AEBRBELLHAELHEHERENE
(M5E17) MR —E R FE (T ——F:
—ERF) ARERISPESAEEES
BEMAEFTREZHER - AOIKEXK
MR EEABABFMEASES - FREW
LR 2 e WA BB 1,348,0007T
—E—— & B ¥3,412,0007T) °

BBEREH

R-Z-—F+-A=+—H AEEHAK
SEVEERNE 2 EZBERMBITRMH
FERLBES1,166,0007C (ZZ——F : B
90,564,0007T) ° ZEERBAMERZNN T
BRI M IEEIRBELEIER ZIRIBES
R RBERMRIEZBERFHBITHRE
EERAE UBERIATFEIETERK -
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33. KAF 2B KRR

33. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BETT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5 34 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B 2 kI8 1,962,685 2,065,529
2,507,685 2,610,529
Current assets RHEE
Other receivables H b & U 5108 399 397
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEED 491 323
890 720
Current liabilities REBERE
Amount due to a subsidiary BB AR A - 46,340
Accrued expenses and other payables &+ 2 B K H e+ 3018 292 208
Provision for income taxation Frig i E 38 111
330 46,749
Net current liabilities FRBERE 560 46,029)
Net assets FEE 2,508,245 2,564,500
EQUITY R
Share capital & s 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves s 29 2,479,914 2,536,169
Total equity HELSEE 2,508,245 2,564,500
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34. PHBASIZHER
RZE-——FR-_F-_—F+=-A=+—H
ZTXEMBATGFEBHOT

34. Interests in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H ERAL/EERE HMEXHE FATMBHRGENIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
&
2021
—E--F
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEEERAF BiE BRARAEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREBEZ 1T RERR
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 — 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLEBRENEBRDR B BARRTEEIT NEBR
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RBRERRES RERAEEE 1T REER
3L
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR ABEBRES MEREBEEEITL REER
LRk
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
RERRART BiE B AR EH100,0007T NERE
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
SENMEEEFRAR 0 B &R % %100,0007T REBFERRYE
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34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AF&H EREL/ EERE HMELHE FATFMBESENL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H#& &
2021
—E--F
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
EBERRES RERAEE 1T REER
LRK
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ikt YN BiE BRBRTERIT NERE
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
REBREBERAA EE B&RAE 1,000 NEER
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
FEBEERAA EE BRERAEEIT NERE
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Mini-storage
Company Limited
ZERMEERERDR & BERRAEEIT #inE
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property investment
ZEEXERAT B BERRAEEIT NERE
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
AEERBRAF BiE BRBRTERIT NERE
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
PRGNS UNG] EE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4 #1¥5 5 Ml 47 fR 2 %)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ 2 = F = —F +=H =+ —HI FZ

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AF&H EREL/ EERE HMELHE FATFMBESENL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2021
—E_—%
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EBEEARES 100,001,008 5 & & REER
BEIT s ERR
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
cHBHEFE AR EEHARKES REREBEZSITL REER
N 3L
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BRREHEARAT Bk BRRAEE1,0007T NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
BiE BARAEE1,0007T NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
FHBBRRF BiE BRBRTERIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERARA EE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - 100% 100%  Property investment

ROBERAT

5

BERAEE2007T

ESSE
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34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share

incorporation/ capital/registered capital
Name operation BRTRAEE
ATEHE A RERE HMEXHE

WETILKTERDEEE  Mainland China Registered capital of

BRAR" RMB25,000,000
RE R HRER
AR #25,000,0007C
EEWEHERR Mainland China Registered capital of
BRAR" RMB30,000,000
B BAIE-EN
AR #30,000,0007C
GETMRERE Mainland China Registered capital of
BRAR" RMB23,000,000
RE A HHER
A R #23,000,0007T
Notes:

*

These subsidiaries were established in the Mainland China as
limited liability companies.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries
is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the
non-controlling interests are not material to the Group.

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

Percentage of interest

held by the Company Principal activities
FATMBREENLL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B
2021
T -F
— 51% 51%  Property
development
NEBR
- 100% 100%  Property
development
NEER
- 100% 100%  Property
development
MEER

*

ZEMBRARANPEAMKLBEREER
7o

EERREBAMEMBARFEZTED
AEEBNILE  HEREHBEZFHAR
SEXEREEREARENZIENE

DAFE -
P 2 B0 2 SR A BT E (T B B 5

F2EMBRAZHMBENRELELEEY
BRETRE  REEZSFERERY
AEEMFATERK ©
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35. Non-Controlling Interests 35. FEIERER
2022 2021
—g=-C T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR ook e s
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 16,476 16,727
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF L (EE) 5,810 (170)
Exchange loss on translation of BMEBINET ZE R
foreign operations &5 18 (1,931) (81)
Dividend paid to non-controliing B IR R B
interest (18,930) —
As at 31 December R+=—R=+—8 1,425 16,476
The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100% FRAEEHEE100%ER 2B AR 2 IE
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and TRIER AR/ TERN B HIFTRE

therefore no further details are disclosed. — WG -
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36. Related Party Transactions 36. FAEtALRS
The following transactions with related parties were, in the EERA CTIHRFRNEFABALETZ
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of REHTIRABEBBIERET:

business during the year:

2022 2021
—g—-C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BT

Short-lease expense and management (IR FABI AL EMN Z A E

fee expense in respect of office WMERBAEERSZ R

premises situated in Guangzhou, EEBMZ(MiEE)

the Mainland China (note (a)) 297 306
Short-lease expense for leasing MER AR A EMNZ

carparking spaces situated in FHEAZEBAERS

Guangzhou, the Mainland China (P 5% (b))

(note (b)) 14 29

Notes: T 7 -

(@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with @) ARR—RMBAAIE—RAEQF (AR
a related company, in which two executive directors of the AMERTESHEAEER) ZTHEHE -
Company have interests, for leasing a number of premises situated HEZBEMRPERNMEMN ZWEERRE
in Guangzhou, the Mainland China for office purpose. A& -

() For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, a subsidiary of ) HEZ-_—FER_FT-_—F+-F=+—
the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related HIEFE AR —KWEB AT R — K=
company, in which a close family member of two executive RENARAMEBNTES 2 AR RIERE
directors of the Company have interests, for leasing one (2021: two) w)RI VA EWZE - HEM R B A E N
carparking spaces situated in Guangzhou, the Mainland China. Z2—EACEZ—F - WE)EEA -

Key management personnel compensation: FTEEBEABETHH:

2022 2021

—g=-= —T-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBETR BT

Basic salaries and other benefits BEXF &k Hi 1@ F) 32,136 39,495
Pension costs — defined contribution RRE KA — EREMHK

plans Bl 72 90

32,208 39,585
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37. "EBGEZEE
RZZE——F+—A+—H8 A£EEE—F
BYE=Z AN EBEEREANE —@IEE
W KRB AB129,0000007T HELE
X A&7 ¥400,0007T e RZZE_—F+=
A=+—RH AEEXREHWI FHZS

37. Assets Classified as Held for Sale
On 11 November 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose an investment property at consideration of
HK$29,000,000, with the direct disposal expenses of
HK$400,000. As at 31 December 2021, an initial deposit of
HK$1,500,000 was received by the Group from the purchaser 75 #1,500,0007T * WET AR & B ISR R &
and included in the consolidated statement of financial position MIESEHEMEMNKIEIFR - ZEBEHEE
under “trade and other payables”. The disposal was completed RZEBEZZF=ZA+HEBAEK ' WHRER
on 15 March 2022 and a gain on disposal of HK$28,000 is T 3R & U &5 8 1528,0007T ©
recognised in profit or loss.

RIBE_—F+_A=1+—H RB %5
VEZHFHEEZ2ENBAREILES

As at 31 December 2021, the assets and liabilities related to a
wholly-owned subsidiary, King Huge Enterprises Limited and

its subsidiaries (collectively the “King Huge Group”) were
disposed to another independent third party at a consideration
of HK$47,300,000, with the direct disposal expenses of
HK$600,000. The disposal of subsidiary is investment holding
company which in turn holds an investment property located in
Hong Kong. The disposal of the subsidiary was completed on
6 April 2022.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the
disposal of investment properties/subsidiaries have been
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The disposals do not constitute a
discontinued operation as it does not represent a major line of
business or geographical area of operation.

BARKEMBAR (SBIELEER))
BHECEENAE - REAB47,300,000
7T - A NSRS AEK600,0007T © AT
EZHBRARAKRERERAR HHULR
BEBEZEREYE - ZWBRARZHEER
“E-_HFMANRHTEK

RIBFBVBHREENFEN  FAHER
EME/WBARZEEEREEFBRK
MERDBER/FE ARHEALFEIERD
e EmE AT TERERLEEE
ZET e

2022 2021
—®-=F —ToF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Hwwe T BETT
Investment properties "EWHE - 75,300
Total assets classified as held for sale NHEEGEZBEE - 75,300
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries 38. HEMEB AT
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended R8&E-F-_—_F+=-H=+—HL
31 December 2022 FEHEMBAR
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has HE-Z-_—F4+-A=+—HLFE XK
disposed 2 subsidiaries to independent third parties at SEmBVE=FHEMWBAR - BK
aggregate consideration of HK$95,300,000. Direct expenses B A7E#095,300,0007T * EEHEZBEERA
in relation to the disposals was HK$1,043,000 and resulted in ¥ A&7 11,043,000 + AT EE D EEIE
loss of disposal of HK$788,000. The following detailed the key 7 #5788,0007T © AT FH I FARHEZEE
disposals of subsidiaries during the year: {OgEENETE
@@  On 6 April 2022, the Group entered into a sales and @ RZZEZZFWANRA NEBEFIZ
purchases agreement to disposal of the entire equity BEMRLERILEEE 2K
interest in King Huge Group with details disclosed in T FEENMES7 c B EEE
note 37. The disposal of King Huge Group was ZHEERZTEZZFMANNETK °
completed on 6 April 2022. The net assets of King Huge FIXERNEERR 2 FEE
Group at the date of disposal were as follows: m
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties (note) wEWEM ) 46,700
Other receivable H b & U kI8 45
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNB AR RIE (1,460)
45,285
Loan assignment BeEE 1,460
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of King Huge HAHBLTEEY P EEE &
Group F 366
Gain on disposal of King Huge Group HEFICEEB 2 Wa 189
47,300
Total consideration MR E
— satisfied by cash — LR & 1T 47,300
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of King Huge HEEICEEBEELE 2
Group BEmAFRE
Consideration received 2R E 47,300
Direct expenses BHERY (366)
46,934
Note: Investment properties which was classified as held for sale as Wek: RZEEZ—F+-A=+—BHEA
at 31 December 2021 have a historical cost of HK$23,495,000 REZREMEZELKNANRBBE
and aggregated fair value gain HK$23,205,000 up to the date 23,495,0007C ' HELERBHZATF

of disposal. B 5 48538 &7 1528,205,0007T °
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2022 (Continued)

(b)

On 19 October 2022, the Group entered into an
agreement to disposal of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Granday Properties
Limited (“Granday Properties”), to an independent third
party at an aggregate consideration of HK$48,000,000.
The disposal of Granday Properties was completed on 4

38. HEKMBAT(E)
NRB8&E-F-_—F+= HE+—EE
FEHEMBAT(E
(o) m_21:$+ﬂ+ﬂ5~$%ﬁﬂ

iR —RBYEZ S AHEREN
BRAREHEXARAR(EREE]
Z2EEKEE BREARBE
48,000,0007T - EHE X Z2HEER
-+ —AWNBERK - EBHE

November 2022. The net assets of Granday Properties ENHEHRZFEEN T :
at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 48,300
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRERWEARRE (8,125)
40,175
Loan assignment EReEE 8,125

Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Granday

BRHERAEX CERAX

Properties 677

Loss on disposal of Granday Properties HERBHEXZEHE 977)
48,000

Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZM 48,000
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Granday HEERRABEREAL

Properties WERAFHE

Consideration received BUWRE 48,000

Direct expenses HEAX 677)

47,323
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEMBAT(E)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended R8&E-F-_—F+=-H=+—HL

31 December 2021 FEHEMBAT

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had HEZS-—F+A=+—RHILFE &

disposed 9 subsidiaries to independent third parties at EEMBYE=HLEREMBAT - AR

aggregate consideration of HK$180,905,000, direct expenses B &7 #180,905,0007T " B HE 2 H#

in relation to the disposals of HK$10,515,000 and resulted in F S A 7E#10,515,0007T + &R HE W B

gain of disposal of HK$1,864,000. The following detailed the 1,864,000 e A NI FREHEZFE

key disposals of subsidiaries during the year: o= NETE

(© On 12 November 2020, the Group entered into an © RZZEZZEF+—A+=H Xx5£H
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a AR BB E = HEEE
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Well Huge Corporation WMBARmREEBRAR (=)
Limited (“Well Huge”), to an independent third party at an L EERE BRE R B
aggregate consideration of HK$13,333,000. The 13,333,000 * mFEZ MEERZE
disposal of Well Huge was completed on 4 January T—F—AWNHZEK - mFREEH
2021. The net assets of Well Huge at the date of disposal Bz FEENMT:

were as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D BAFEZEEZ
as held for sale wEME 13,333
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWEBRRRIE (893)
12,440
Loan assignment B E 893
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of WellHuge ARt EHFEs HEEMAY 1,161
Loss on disposal of Well Huge HESRZEE (1161)
13,333
Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UReFH 13,333
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Well Huge HERFREEZ
e mAERE
Consideration received 2R E 13,333
Direct expenses HEAX (1,161)

12,172
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEKMBAT(E)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-F-—%1+= ﬁ =+-—H1

31 December 2021 (Continued) FEHEHRBAT(E

(d)  On 16 October 2020, the Group entered into an d RZZEZZF+AH +/\E| CREEE]
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a R RBLE=AHEREN
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Easy Loyal BARNEREBEER AR (BRI 2
International Limited (“Easy Loyal”), to an independent ﬁﬁﬁﬂié R (E A% 16,268,000
third party at an aggregate consideration of o JERZHEERZE-—F A
HK$16,268,000. The disposal of Easy Loyal was +E|7u;ﬂz JERAEERBR 2 FEE
completed on 10 February 2021. The net assets of Easy s
Loyal at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
BT I
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D EAFTEZEE 2
as held for sale "EWME 16,268
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNB AR RIE (1,146)
15,122
Loan assignment B E 1,146
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Easy Loyal AR HEIER 2 BERX 1,751
Loss on disposal of Easy Loyal HEIER B8 (1,751)
16,268
Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UReFM 16,268
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Easy Loyal HEIBREELEZ
RERAFHE
Consideration received 2R E 16,268
Direct expenses BEEAX (1,751)

14,517
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) . HEMBAS(E)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-F-—%1+= ﬁ =+-—H1

31 December 2021 (Continued) FEHERBAT(E

(© On 19 November 2020, the Group entered into an © RZEZZTF+-— )EJWLjLE e
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a Al mm BB E = HEEE
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Manage International WEAREREBER AR ([EEEH
Limited (“Manage International”), to an independent third KDz 2 MlEE BERERBE
party at an aggregate consideration of HK$17,098,000. 17,098,0007T - BB 2 HEE R
The disposal of Manage International was completed on T -F-At+NBEK - EE
19 February 2021. The net assets of Manage BREEHRZFEENT

International at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D EAFEZEE
as held for sale REWMHE 17,098
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEEY NG (1,118)
15,980
Loan assignment B 1,118
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of ERTEEREBR I EEMX
Manage International 1,463
Loss on disposal of Manage International HEBEEEE 2 EE (1,463)
17,098
Total consideration HRE
— satisfied by cash — MR e 17,098
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Manage HEEBEEBRRESE 2
International ReRANFHE
Consideration received 2R E 17,098
Direct expenses BEERY (1,463)

15,635
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

®

On 19 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Fast Rich Enterprise
Limited (“Fast Rich”), to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of HK$17,088,000. The disposal
of Fast Rich was completed on 19 February 2021. The

38. HEKMBAT(E)
N8&E-—F-_—F+=-HA=+—HL
FEHEHRBAT(E)
fH R-ZE_ZTFE+—A+NLA £E£H

YRR RBYEZAHERE
MEAREECERRAR(ES)
ZEREKEE BREARBE
17,088,000 - B HEENE
——F-A+hBRK - BERHE

net assets of Fast Rich at the date of disposal were as AEZ FEEMNT
follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D EAFTEZEE 2
as held for sale REME 17,088
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAS B R M B AR 38 (1,399)
15,689
Loan assignment B E 1,399
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Fast Rich BRALERECEERX 1,462
Loss on disposal of Fast Rich HEREZEE (1,462)
17,088
Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UReFM 17,088
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Fast Rich HERERELA Y
RERAFRE
Consideration received 2R E 17,088
Direct expenses BEEAX (1,462)

15,626




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 = F = —#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

()

On 28 April 2021, Able Best International Investment
Limited (“Able Best”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a share exchange agreement (the
“Share Exchange Agreement”) with inter alia Mr. Tang
Shing Bor (“the Deceased”), pursuant to which (i) Able
Best conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of and the shareholder’s loan owing by
Mainway Holdings Limited (“Mainway Holdings”) at the
consideration of HK$135 million, subject to adjustments
and (ii) Able Best conditionally agreed to sell and transfer
the entire issued share capital of and the shareholder’s
loan owing by Year Glory Limited (“Year Glory”) to a
company beneficially owned by the Deceased at the
consideration of HK$70 million, subject to adjustments.
Mainway Holdings was the owner of a number of
industrial property units located in Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Properties”) while Year Glory
was the owner of a number of residential property units
in Kowloon City, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Deceased
passed away before the agreed completion date of the
Share Exchange Agreement.

On 24 August 2021, Able Best, the joint administrators of
the estate of the Deceased (the “Joint Administrators”)
and others entered into a termination deed to terminate
the Share Exchange Agreement. On the same date and
in lieu of the Sale Exchange Agreement, Master Green
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a property sale and purchase agreement
with Mainway Holdings to acquire the Properties from it
at the consideration of HK$130 million while Able Best
and other parties entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement to sell and transfer the entire issued share
capital of and the shareholder’s loan owing by Year Glory
at the consideration of HK$70 million (the “Disposal”),
subject to adjustments, to entity nominated by the Joint
Administrators.

38. HEMBAE (&)
R8&E=-_F-_—F+=-A=+—H1L
FEHEMBAS(E)

()

RZEBE_—FWA=-+N\H ARAF
Z & B M B A 7 Able Best
International Investment Limited ([Able
Best)) 82 (K 8 48) B Ak K 5L £ (B
WE DI LR DR B (RH iR
s ]) - #E Utk 0 ()Able Best & & 4 [F
EWEBNEEBRERAG(EF
Bz E2EEBETRARMRE 2B
RER - K& A% %135,000,0007T
(AT 738 2) : X (i)Able Best B IE 1 [A
EMEHMEEREA A ARINEE
EILBABERAR(TEL 2 & HE %
TRARMRBZEREER  REA
7% #70,000,0007T (A T # 2) - & FI
BEBZBEMRNEBNAZLR LT
EMEBMN(ZEWED TERESR
ZEMREBENENLER Z2EEY
EEBAM - BEMERROZ G Z 2
TE SR HE 2 Bt o

R-ZZE-_—FN A -+VWAE  Able
Best * B EEE - ERAEE AR
EEEADREMA RIS RIERE
R IEBR DRI - RERREA
PR iamE B R - BRERAF
(ApElz2EWBARE) BEF AT
UWEBEEHE EREBE
130,000,0007T [M & F B K Bz E W)
% i Able Best & H b 5 IR [E By 5] 37 A%
HMEEHE UEREBEE
70,000,0007¢ (A] T # #) m H [ & 12
AEEZERBEENEZTLR 22
BETRARAREGzBRRERER(T
EEHE] -
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

@

38

. HEMBAE(E)
R8&E-_F-_—F+=-A=+—HL
FEHEMBAS(E)

(Continued) @) (%)
Completion of the purchase of the Properties and the BEZEMERLESTHEEIRZEZ
Disposal took place on 28 September 2021. —FNAZTN\BZEK -
Details of above transactions are disclosed in the LR S52FHBERAREBA R
Company’s announcements dated on 28 April 2021, T —FWMA=Z+NB -ZE=Z—F
20 May 2021, 5 July 2021, 9 August 2021, 20 August AAZ+TH ZE=—FtHARAH =
2021, 24 August 2021 and 28 September 2021. Z-—FNANB ZE=—FN\A
—t+RZE-FNAAZTmEHBER
ZEC-FAAZTNBZRAER -
The net assets of Year Glory at the date of disposal were TERREERRFEENT
as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties "EWME 66,640
Deferred tax IR IE (970)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZRNB AR RIE (46,769)
18,901
Loan assignment BEieEE 46,769
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Year Glory HBREETH 2 EERX 1,424
Gain on disposal of Year Glory HE T2 W as 2,906
70,000
Total consideration BRE
— satisfied by cash — AR &M 70,000
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Year Glory HETEREEZ
ReRAFRE
Consideration received 2R E 70,000
Direct expenses BEAX (1,424)

68,576
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEKMBAT(E)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended N8&E-_F-_—F+=-HA=+—HL

31 December 2021 (Continued) FEHEMBAT(E)

()  On 25 May 2021, the Group entered into an agreement to h RZE_—FHEA-FTHH £5H
dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned Al pmm BB E = HEEE
subsidiary, namely Famous Point Enterprise Limited MBARIMETERRAR(MED
(“Famous Point”), to an independent third party at an ZEHKRE BREARBEBEK
aggregate consideration of HK$17,488,000. The disposal 17,488,0007C - M v HEERZE
of Famous Point was completed on 23 August 2021. The T—FENAZT=ZHEK - MERE
net assets of Famous Point at the date of disposal were EHHZFEENT
as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 13,397
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRRWEBRRRE (1,017)
12,380
Loan assignment EREE 1,017
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Famous BRALEmMSEcEERAX
Point 95
Gain on disposal of Famous Point HEmE z W= 3,996
17,488
Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UBReXH 17,488
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Famous Point & [A| 82 &= 4 ~
RERAFHE
Consideration received 2R E 17,488
Direct expenses HERY (95)

17,393
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

0

On 24 June 2021, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Grand Profit Creation Limited (“Grand
Profit”), to an independent third party at an aggregate
consideration of HK$17,800,000. The disposal of Grand
Profit was completed on 30 July 2021. The net assets of

38. HEMBAT(E)
N8&E=-F=-—F+= E]E+—EIJJ:
FEHEMBAT(E
() HKR=-Z=—— i/\ﬂ_+EEl C AEE

YRR RBYEZAHERE
MEBAREFAIZERAR(EF])
ZEREKEE BREARBE
17,800,0007C * & F wc HEE R ZE
T—F+HAZt+HER - EHFREE

Grand Profit at the date of disposal were as follows: AEZ FEENT
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 16,273
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRERWEARRE (1,239)
15,034
Loan assignment B 1,239
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Grand Profit AR HEEF 2 EER S 2,118
Loss on disposal of Grand Profit HEER BB (591)
17,800
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UReFM 17,800
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Grand Profit & &R E 4 2
WERAFHE
Consideration received 2R E 17,800
Direct expenses HEAX (2,118)

15,682
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEKMBAT(E)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-_F-_—F+-A=+—HL

31 December 2021 (Continued) FEHEMBAT(E)

()  On 1 September 2021, the Group entered into an () RKRZZEZ—FAA—B KX&EEFIY
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a R — 2B E = ALE2ENE
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Wealth Easy AeEEEEFSRAR(IBE)Z2
Corporation Limited (“Wealth Easy”), to an independent B A% #E - B R E BB 11,750,000
third party at an aggregate consideration of e BRZEEER_E—F 1A
HK$11,750,000. The disposal of Wealth Easy was “thAZER - IEEREEBRHZF
completed on 29 October 2021. The net assets of BEMWT:

Wealth Easy at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 9,400
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWEARRE (985)
8,415
Loan assignment EREE 985
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Wealth Easy BRI EIERE 2 HEZEFH X 1,034
Gain on disposal of Wealth Easy o E B B 2 W5 1,316
11,750
Total consideration wRE
— satisfied by cash — UBREeXH 11,750
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Wealth Easy ~— H&BERERKEL 2
RERANFRE
Consideration received 2R E 11,750
Direct expenses HEAX (1,034)

10,716
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39. Financial Instruments 30. MBITHR
39.1 Summary of Financial Assets and Liabilities 391 BREMEI D ZHMBEEERE B
by Category =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REB B EERBERRERR
liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are MRCEEESBEOT:

categorised as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BT T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised BB P AR B BB
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B EIWGRIAFRE 46,565 30,039
— Other receivables and — EthEl R IE RET &
deposits, net F R 24,052 20,570
— Loan receivables — EWRER 9,810 21,720
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHBITFR - 16,110
— Short-term bank deposits — RHESRTTER 272,400 251,181
— Cash and cash equivalents —RERBREEEYD 1,122,544 885,358
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBR 2B
BE 38,884 2,815
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAVEFAEMETE
WAZBEEE 39,656 28,605
1,553,911 1,256,398
Financial liabilities MBAaE
At amortised cost 121 85 P AR
— Trade payables — B ENRIEB (18,466) (17,405)
— Accrued expenses and — B ERRAMENIE
other payables (477,156) (501,856)
— Dividend payable — B E (14,107) -
— Borrowings, secured — B8 BHEA (1,774,527) (1,871,501)
(2,284,256) (2,390,762)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

RBEBH - AR EHR AT R
ZHBEERBBEZREAEREERF
BEY|MEARNER -
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30. I R(E)
V2 HBRAKEEBERBK

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Marketrisk
i Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
loan receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The
Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely monitors its loan portfolio and
compares the interest rates under loan
agreements with existing banks against new
offers on borrowing rates from different
pbanks in the loan re-financing and
negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate instruments.

AEERBEEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR (OMNER R
AR g N A AR R R) o AT -
EETHARgR T RHIER RN
EREAKEMSHERAR

—RmE  AEEREREREESIA
RTREE - HRAKBATSHIHRE R
RN &R - BURREY ERA
ERTETAREMTAES R Z
Ao REBI EFFH REITOTESRF
TAEERSZ - AKBMAX Z&
EXFHRAREINDAT -

(a) 5 /E g
0O FIEER

MERBEMBETAZA
FEIRSRERAT ST
REBHM IR KB 2 B2
B - AEERFRAR
fEE - BRER - ZEH
RITFEFARRE RS
SEYMEHRSRER
KRR o NEEITIILE L
78 BRER 1T 7 K 1 I A
BN XER - REBRF
W BN RGP EK - A
e AEETEREE
RE  UEERERE
KBRS - HERAR
IR ER i BE
MR EAARRITIRE ZH
EEENRIERLLE -

AEB RS RENER
REREPREREEF
BREXTEELZEHER
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates are set
out under “interest rate benchmark reform”
in this note.

The policies to manage interest rate risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
year are considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to variable-rate financial
instruments at that date. 25 basis points
increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The management considered that the
Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk on
variable-rate cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and bank deposits
at escrow account as a result of the
changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

30. MBI R(E)
302 i EMGEEEERBE(E)

(a) W5 EE (&)

()

T 2 fz (48

T BN R RARNE
EERIETT - BRNEED
T b M R BB RTT
RZEFETRITRAER
Bl BRMRELENS
BN SREE f E HE SR AR
R ERBRAEERNR
ZEMEE - FEERK
B FERO[ A REAEDNE | o

AEBEEFREDKRBE
BRN=RERZBR  BA
BRI R AR -

Tl 5 g0 B B 9T
BURE DT TR F R R
HERAHELEEHME
T WEANZBZZE
FREF T E o o5(8E2h
IR E R BY R R
AEAREE B 2 o R
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated that
a general increase of 25 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variable held
constant, would increase the Group’s loss
after tax and decrease the retained profits
by approximately HK$3,684,000 (2021:
increase the Group’s loss after tax and
decrease the retained profits by
approximately HK$3,861,000). There is no
impact on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the
general increase in interest rates. A
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate
would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above financial instruments to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant. The
sensitivity results are mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate loan receivables and
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Despite the Group has
certain financial assets at FVTOCI
denominated in US Dollars (‘US$”),no any
significant movements in the HK$/US$
exchange rate is expected as HK$ is
pegged to US$. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for other financial
instruments as they were denominated in the
same currency as the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these
transactions relate.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to other price risk
arising from changes in fair value of
structure bank deposits and fund
investments which carried at FVTPL and
FVTOCI respectively.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL
and FVTOCI as the Directors consider a
reasonable possible change to the fair value
of the financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI
will not have a significant effect to the
Group’s profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees issued by the Group arising from the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of financial
guarantees disclosed in note 32.

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables is
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model on
balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan)
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loan receivables. Based on assessment by the
Directors, aside from those loan receivables
credit-impaired in prior year, the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for
other loan receivables is insignificant as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group performs individual
credit evaluations on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits over a certain amount
and collective assessment on the recoverability of
remaining other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and no history of default in
the past. No loss allowance provision for restricted
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents was recognised upon
application of HKFRS 9. The Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
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Other financial

rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items
HithMA BB EE Hith

PMEBEETFR R ESEWRIE I5EH

Low risk The counterparty has a low Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
risk default and does not credit-impaired
have any past-due amounts

1K L B2 HFRzENRARRBE ¥ CHRHAEHREEEERE 1REARBEEER
B fo] 8 EA SR IR — EBEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired
after due date

BERzE EBALESEIHAZRER - CRHEHREEEE 1REABBEEER
BAFESHBREE — EEERE

Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources

R R iﬂlﬁjﬁ?_’%ﬁﬁl\%ﬁiﬁﬁz FRBEREEEE CROAESREEERE
art - FERBEYIHE — EBEERE — EBEERE
RAKRE a&,ﬁ%i‘ hn

Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
the asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired

&8 ERBRTEELBREER ERPEMEEERE FRARBEEER
A —BEERE —BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating Amount is written off Amount is written off
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
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(b)

- - - — —
39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. BT R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and VD2 FEEMGEEEERBE(E)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (b)) EEEMEREEFGE)
(Continued)
The tables below details the credit risk exposures TRENAEEBESTEHRE
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject BEEBEITMCUBEEZREE
to ECL assessment: 2 Bz el
External Internal 12-month or
creditrating creditrating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12EASERHEY
SIMBIEETR ABEEIFR SEBE REAE
2022 2021
k- ek N T —F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M7t BETT BT T
Financial assets BREHBEIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 Wk R 20 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 46,565 30,039
@A B 5E3 ERMEREEEE
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 4,022 4,667
I3 A BB BEERE
Loan receivables i e=E 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 9,810 21,720
A A & & R 1R2EAEHEERE
Loss Credit-impaired 141,776 142,023
1B AEERE
Restricted bank deposits 5 R # §f 1717 3% 22 A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL - 8,514
T A 12EAAESREEEE
B1-Baat N/A 12-month ECL - 7,596
38 A 12@AEMEERE
- 16,110
Short-term bank deposits %2 # 8 17 717 3% 22 Aa3-Aai N/A 12-month ECL 30,000 -
i@ A 12@AESHEERS
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 242,400 251,181
i@ A 12@AESMEERE
272,400 251,181
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & kIR & FEY 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 371,916 54,827
i@ A 12@AESHEERS
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 296,880 449,743
i@ A 12@AEHEERE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 453,748 380,788
iE A 12@AESMEERE
1,122,544 885,358
Other receivables and HAh e IE R ET & N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 24,052 20,570
deposits i@ A B 3 12EABHEEEE
Other items HiIEH
Financial guarantee M ERALN 32 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 51,166 90,564
contracts (Note 2) (P 5E2) i A 1K [\ B& 12@AABEHEERB
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30. MBI R(E)
V2 HEEAMEEBERBE(E)

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEGREEFFEE)
(Continued)
Notes: B EE
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, 1. RETADEERRERE - K
the Group uses past due information to assess EEEABHAENTEEER
whether credit risk has increased significantly since RE T HERIARE BEEG
initial recognition. e
Pastdue Not past due Total
BH miE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT
Other receivables and deposits £l & 42 5018 M 7T &
As at 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+ZA=+—8H - 24,052 24,052
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE_—%+-A=+—H - 20,570 20,570

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying 2. MM ERAEHME - BREA
amount represents the maximum amount the Group BEASEIRBEEBEGOER
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The ZEEeHE BXRWEIATF
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher EmRAEBRRITEL ZE
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks, REE - ALZEERAVHER
and thus the Directors considered the loss given ERZENEBERE Mo
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and BEREHNZ12EAEHREER
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts BEERIETERX -

is insignificant.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the 3. HEHEKFIBEME A5

simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

7B T 4R R AU H 0%
2RI s RERBEN
SEER B BREH - A%
LEEEN N ET Te
B2 A R T R
#E -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables
and loan receivables.

30. MBI R(E)
V2 HEEAMEEBERBE(E)

(b)

155 /E B R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

BEBAZGFEREXTIRIE
BEHAREFFHAZBED
BREQREHGE X E
FANHIBERERAKB WA
SR MEERELFE -

E=RA HEHIREREZRE
RMEMEEERREE AL
E N

TR E 5 E WA M
WERERZBEREEBRE
%b o

ECL (credit-impaired)
EHEEBE(FEEEE)
Loan receivables

W E®

Trade receivables

EHEKRE

2022 2021 2021
—§-Z T —F —T_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT
As atthe beginning of the R ¥R & Ei 7))
reporting period 142,023 142,423 4,667 5,072
Changes due to financial R—A—HB®ER
instruments recognised BT AmE
as at 1 January:
— Impairment loss - BREZRESSE
reversed (247) (400) (24) (182)
— Write-offs — Mgy - - (764) (223)
New financial assets EEMUBEE
originated - - 143 -
As at the end of the RIE#R
reporting period 141,776 142,023 4,022 4,667
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, for term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest time band in which the entity
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect.

30. I R(E)
3092 MERAREERERKE (H)

(c)

mEBE 2 E R (E)
TRFAVNAEB 2 HBRER
WEBHZ R A OB IFS -
TRBEAOARFTRARESTE (B
ERAA T =R (AT EF
K)ERRERRZERA KRG
B2MENF) RAEE AR
Sz &xREHEE - LHEZ
BEEARRTEERBITE
ZIBBEBRERGER ZBEPER
M5 ZOMBERHERAE
SIEEGRAEN S BMESMER
AERAUREAXNZREHR
HWEZRERL -

31 December 2022
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
Z®-ZEtZR=t-8
HABRA-RFRRERE

Weighted
average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
% amount cashflow  ondemand 5years 5 Years
mi# SHRIFH
FHHE ReRE —Eh —-ENtL
) fREfE ag REXE BIEUA RENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT EETT BETT BETT
Trade payables EHRANNE NATER 18,466 18,466 18,466 - -
Accrued expenses and other EAERREM
payables e 5 E NATER 340,168 340,168 340,168 - -
Rental deposits received Bkt e N/A 7 i B 136,988 136,988 58,316 78,672 =
Bank loans BITER 210 1,774,521 1,870,323 125,082 1,745,291 -
Financial quarantee contracts BBERAY N/A 7 - 51,166 51,166 = =
Lease liabilities REAR 3.93 50,615 54,593 22,547 25,778 6,268
Dividend Payable ER&RE NATER 14,107 14,107 14,107 - -
2,334,871 2,485,811 629,802 1,849,741 6,268
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and V2 HBRAKEEBEERBE(E)
Policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FEELEREE)

31 December 2021
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
“F-FTZA=T-A
IBBASM-KFARRERE

Weighted

average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years

mi AHFRITE
THF= Beng —FRH —FE
% BEE ke REXE  BREHNA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade payables ZHREATE NATE R 17405 17,405 17405 -
Accrued expenses and other payables JE:H B R R AN TR NATE R 345,203 345,203 345,203 -
Rental deposits received B EES NATE 156,653 156,653 70,378 86,275
Bank loans BHER 124 1,871,501 1,910,207 1,419,302 490,905
Financial guarantee contracts HBERAY NATE B - 90,564 90,564 -
Lease liabilties BERE 393 29,428 30778 14,612 16,166

2,420,190 2,650,810 1,967,464 503,346
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39. MBI ARG

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, the Group’s HIBOR bank borrowings may
be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is
closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to
new benchmark interest rates, including announcements made
by the relevant IBOR regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA”)
has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan
to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been
adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-
exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates and without detailed fallback
clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s
counterparties are not successfully concluded before the
cessation of HIBOR, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to
additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at the
beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit
spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically risk-
free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will
result in additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.

FlEEyE

AN FE26FT5)  NEBZ B ERERE
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EFYIE TR R E BB LR R @K
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40. Reconciliation of Liabilities Relating to

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note
41. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

40. U EFEESAMAZ BRI

TERFIAGEHERELTHERCAEE
B BRRSLIFRSED M FHZ2
P2 FET BEEBDELEZABNBE
FARRAKESRERERERADER
METHERZEGREZRERE -

Amount
Amount due to
due to minority Lease
shareholders interest liabilities ~ Borrowings Total
Eft D
EftRERE EERE HEAR Ee @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—%—H—H - - 17,413 1,851,998 1,869,411
Cash flow, net BehE RN (56,662) - (11,314) (4,253) (72,209)
Other non-cash changes: Hi kR e 28 -
New leases entered nERE - - 22,471 - 22,471
Finance costs recognised EERBEKAR - - 858 23,756 24,614
Dividends declared EERKE 56,662 - - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-A=1—H - — 29,428 1,871,501 1,900,929
Cash flow, net REREFH (56,662) (18,930) (23,552) (137,895) (237,039)
Other non-cash changes: HitFHe 2
New leases entered MEHEE - - 42,581 = 42,581
Finance costs recognised ERABERK - - 2,158 40,921 43,079
Dividends declared BEEREE 56,662 18,930 - - 75,592
As at 31 December 2022 WZZZZ§+-A=+-H - - 50,615 1,774,527 1,825,142
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41.

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and other bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.

M. EXEBER

AEEEAEE T R2ARRBRAEH
FBEEZN  NEBRERRIEHRE
BRREMFOERENES

AR B OB SRR TSR AL -
WU EAEEE - AR B E AL -
A 88 [ 7 38 22 0 AR R B 2 R B - AR R
BB EARSTATH A O
BiZ - B REFELED -

AEBNBAEHEE L XEERNFE
BBRABERNERER - FEHUGRAH
BRAKRALAEEEERHEEREZEM
MRE MIREFEY R EMIRITFRH -
RERAR A MBI R PARZ s B8R
AE - AKEEEARARYESLERN
AERZKE -

2021
—E-—4F
HK$’000
BET T
Borrowings BB 1,774,527 1,871,501
Lease liabilities HEARE 50,615 29,428
— Financial assets at FVTOCI — BAFEFAEME®A
WAZWBEE (39,656) (28,605)
— Financial assets at FVTPL — B AFEFAEBZ 2T
BE (38,884) (2,815)
— Restricted bank deposits — R RITF R - (16,110)
— Short-term bank deposits — RHERITER (272,400) (251,181)
— Cash and cash equivalents -~ RekREEEYD (1,122,544) (885,358)
Net debt BER 351,658 716,860
Total equity S 19,175,634 19,541,700
Net debt to equity ratio FEEHERLEE 0.018:1 0.037:1
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
19 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM”).

The principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

Purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants to
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company and
at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Eligible Participants of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme

Eligible participants of the 2011 Share Option Scheme includes
(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or proposed
executive or non-executive directors) of the Group or any
member of the Group and any part-time employee with weekly
working hours of 10 hours or above of the Group; (ii) any
advisor, consultants or agent to the Group; any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group; or any other person who,
at the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group; and (iii) any trustee of any trust
(whether family or discretionary) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business association of the Group.

Total number of securities issuable

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme provided that the share options lapsed will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

At the 2011 AGM, the said 10% limit of number of shares
available for issue was 25,091,413 shares.

42.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Total number of securities issuable (Continued)
Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general meeting
to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In such event, the
total number of shares in respect of which share options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
such approval provided that share options previously granted
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised share options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share option granted and yet to be
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
(or such other higher percentages as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
14,335,413 representing approximately 5.06% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of each employee/
participant

Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting with the particular Participant
(as defined in the 2011 Share Option Scheme) and his or her
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting, the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

42.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the period which the
shares must be taken up under a share option and the
minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised are to be decided by the Directors
upon granting the relevant share options. Details of such
information (if any) relating to the outstanding share options are
set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time
to accept offer

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the granting
of share options shall be accepted within 21 days from the
offer date and by way of payment of consideration of HK$1.00.

Exercise price

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price shall
be a price determined by the board of directors and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the offer date;

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
shares as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading

days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the shares.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

43.

(Continued)

Life of the share option scheme

The 2011 Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from its
adoption date (i.e. 19 May 2011).

On 3 January 2013 (the “Grant Date”), 5,196,000 share options
(the “Share Options”) to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were
granted to certain eligible individuals, including executive
directors, under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The exercise
price of the Share Options is HK$15.76 per share and the
vesting schedule of the Share Options are as follows:

(@  50% of the options can be exercised at any time after first
anniversary of the Grant Date;

(b)  25% of the options can be exercised at any time after
second anniversary of the Grant Date; and

(c)  The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised at
any time after third anniversary of the Grant Date.

The fair value of the Share Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 under 2011 Share Option Scheme
determined at the Grant Date using Trinomial Option Pricing
Model was HK$23,610,000.

All Share Options were lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Comparative figures

The following comparative figures in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation of
the Group:

Reclassification of administrative expenses regarding the staff
costs and other administrative cost in an amount of
approximately HK$32,531,000 to cost of sales to fairly present
the nature of costs incurred.

In the opinion of the Board, the reclassification made to the
comparative figures has insignificant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022.

43.
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